
Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

 

Board Quality Committee Agenda 

January 19, 2023 

3:30 p.m. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mission Statement 

Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient-centered care in a sustainable manner. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://bartletthospital.zoom.us/j/94821462737 

 

Dial in:  
       888 788 0099 US Toll-free 

        877 853 5247 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: 948 2146 2737 

 

Call to order 
  

Approval of the minutes – December 13 , 2022       pg. 2 

      

Standing Agenda Items: 

 Voice of the Patient       A. Muse   

         

New Business: 

 Environment of Care Management Plan    M. Walker 

o Medical Equipment Management Plan       pg. 7 

o Life Safety Management Plan        pg. 16 

o Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan     pg. 25 

o Safety Management Plan        pg. 37 

o Utility Systems Management Plan       pg. 45 

o Security Management Plan        pg. 56 

 Utilization Management Plan      J. Lacey  pg. 61 

 Quality Management Plan      G. Moorehead  pg. 68 

                

Next Scheduled Meeting: TBD 

 

Adjournment  

 
Board Quality Strategic Plan Initiative Oversight Summary 

 

People:  

3.1 Resolve electronic medical record concerns  

3.2 Expand workforce development programs 

Quality and Safety 

5.1  Stay current on technology and resources to facilitate risk management, data security, and employee safety 

5.2  Develop quality initiatives that exceed accreditation and regulatory requirements 

1/79



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

Board Quality Committee minutes 05/11/2022       

 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 

Board Quality Committee 

October 24, 2022 

Minutes 

 

Called to order at 15:30 p.m. by Lindy Jones 

 

Board Members: Hal Geiger, Lisa Peterson, Lindy Jones, Kenny Solomon-Gross 

 

Staff: Gail Moorehead, Autumn Muse, Miranda Dumont, Deb Koelsch, David Keith, Evan 

Price, Charlee Gribbon, Dallas Hargrave, Sam Norton 

Guests: None 

 

Kenny Solomon-Gross  made a MOTION to approve the minutes from October 24, 2022 

Board Quality Meeting. Mark Johnson seconded, minutes are approved. 

 

Old Business:  None 

 

New Business: 

Voice of the Patient       A. Muse 

Autumn started the meeting with a patient experience story surrounding a patient who 

had a bad experience during their procedure at our Short Stay Center.  The patient gave 

us valuable feedback and has shaped our current efforts in DEI. 

Infection Control       C. Gribbon 

Charlee gave a viral illness update in our community.  The outpatient visits are extremely 

high and the positivity rate of influenza is higher than she has ever seen.  She educated 

the group on why we are concerned about influenza.  Juneau is testing our waste water 

and influenza in the is going up.  She shared our local ED metrics surrounding ER visits 

and COVID like illnesses (CLI).  In the last six weeks we’ve seen a marked increase in 

flu positivity.  This week we are averaging 60% positivity rate.  90% of the influenza 

patients in the ED are not vaccinated against the flu.  86% of our staff are vaccinated 

against the flu.   

Charlee shared her 2023 plan and goals for Infection Control.  We met our hand hygiene 

goals in 2022.  Patients’ perceptions of hand washings also went up.  Observations 

2/79



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

Board Quality Committee minutes 05/11/2022       

continue to be a barrier.  Surgical Site Infections (SSI) is the next biggest risk.  We were 

close, but we did not meet our goals. We had a significant increase in C. Difficile 

infections.  We had a rate of 1.9 last year.  Our last goal was to prevent respiratory illness 

among staff.  We are proud to say we only have about 15 staff numbers. 

Mr. Geiger pointed out that the providers have the lowest vaccination rate.  The data is 

unclear as to whether we don’t have the data or if they are not vaccinated.  Ms. Peterson 

asked if Charlee had an opinion as to why people don’t get vaccinated.  Charlee stated 

that some staff share their reasons for not being vaccinated and some say it is a personal 

preference.  The one reason she does hear is that staff is having to mask anyways.  She 

also asked if we tried incentivizing people to get vaccinated.  She also asked if our rate of 

vaccination is typical.  Charlee thinks we are “above the norm.”  Mr. Solomon-Gross 

stated that the Infection Control office has made it very easy for staff and board members 

to get vaccinated.   

Patient Family Engagement      A. Muse 

Dr. Jones made a request that Autumn share the outcomes of the DEI project with the 

board.   

Autumn shared an update about the Patient Family Engagement Advisory committee.  

She shared that the committee has grown, including a mission and vision.  She explained 

that the data is coming from Press Ganey, as well as patient feedback forms and talking 

to patients in the community.   

We received feedback from a patient that they didn’t know what to expect while they 

were in the hospital.  WE have worked with the Med/Surg team and formulated a handout 

for patients, so they have an idea of what to expect.  There are plans to develop a video 

for patients before they come to the hospital. 

The committee is also focusing on DEI.  The work we are doing with the LGBTQ 

community is where we are starting. 

The other project we are starting is improving our discharge process.  While this is a huge 

project, we believe that it is very important for them to feel comfortable with discharge.  

One way we are tackling this is ensuring our discharge instructions are at a 5th grade 

reading level. 

The last project is replacing the fish tank with an alternate visual.  We are currently 

brainstorming with the Bartlett Foundation.  There was discussion about how the fishtank 

was a staple in our hospital for a long time.  Mr. Keith shared that the tank was costing 

$500 per month. 

Workplace Safety Report      E. Price 

3/79



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

Board Quality Committee minutes 05/11/2022       

Evan gave an update on our workforce safety.  He explained the parameters of reporting 

criteria which are quite strict.  Our rates are lower than US and Alaska hospitals.  He 

believes we under reported in 2020.  We did not have COVID cases to report to OSHA.  

He believes the jump in sharps injuries indicates an increase in reporting.  WE have 

rewrote the post exposure protocol to take the ED out of the process.  Dr. Jones asked 

what strategies are we putting in place to reduce sharps injuries.  We will be 

implementing a Stops Sticks campaign.  Evan has proposed a PI project to reduce sharps 

injuries through data collection and new supplies.   

Standing Agenda Items 

2022 BOD Quality Dashboard     D.  Koelsch 

 Deb Koelsch gave an update on the Board Quality dashboard.  Our fall rates have 

increased.  We had one fall with injury last quarter.  We have an acceptable rate but we want 

zero falls.  Gail explained most of our falls are from patients with a diagnosis of dementia or 

altered mental status.  She explained that 1:1 sitters can increase agitation.  Dr, Jones asked if our 

increase in rates is due to our increased boarding.  We did have one patient who was boarding 

here that had several falls.  We are below the national rate for 30-day readmissions.  Deb shared 

that the readmissions project will now be diving into the data they collected over the last year. 

Gail gave a short explanation of our HCAHP scores.  We are looking at how we can improve our 

communications.  Staff are working hard on hourly rounding.  Mr. Keith asked how we break 

down the numbers.  We have rates based on inpatients/outpatients.  We do not have the numbers 

based on the different clinics.  Mr. Keith explained that we should be able to give doctors their 

scores and give them a chance to better their practice.  We are looking at other options and what 

they provide.   

2023 BOD Quality Metrics Presentation    G. Moorehead 

 Gail gave a presentation about her vision for the 2023 Quality Metrics Dashboard.  The 

board are looking at four things:  Outcomes, Safety, Value and Experience.  She reviewed the 

current dashboard.  We aren’t currently reporting on Value.  She asked the question at what our 

legacy will be.  She does not want to shoot for average, she believes we should expect above 

average care should be given.  The metrics she proposes are:   

People 

1. Workforce turnover rates 

2. Workforce by status (FT, PT, Casual, Contractor) 

Quality and Safety: 

1. IT Security data 

4/79



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

Board Quality Committee minutes 05/11/2022       

2. Employee Safety 

3. Risk Report 

4. AHHA Safer together Action Plan Goals 

She asked the board members what they are looking for.  Mr. Keith would like to address Out 

Migration.  Dr. Jones is interested in the 30-day readmission numbers.  He discussed that the 

Sepsis data is subjective.  At the board level he likes the falls report and staff injury rates.  Dallas 

added that he does report some of the workforce numbers to the board in another way.  Mr. 

Geiger asked how do we add value?  He explained that there is a big difference in cost of having 

an orthopedic surgery here and in Seattle.  Dr. Jones wants a report on falls and a report on SSI.  

Gail explained that she does not want to drag the board into the weeds.  She spoke on 

ophthalmology and what a value it is to the community.  Mr. Geiger asked how we measure Out 

Migration.  Mr. Keith explained we can pull data out of Washington state and look for Juneau 

zip codes.   

EMR Update 

Sam Norton gave an update on Meditech.  The physician EMR committee has met once.  He 

explained that we are packaging releases to target certain audiences.  The group will be visiting 

Logan Health in January.  They currently us Meditech in the ED.  For people form our ED will 

be attending.  He shared that we have been meeting with Meditech.  Our next step is to look at 

our staffing.  He, as well as Meditech have recommended increasing IT staff and provide on-call 

help.  Meditech ran a ‘health check,’  There is a meeting scheduled tomorrow with them and the 

CFO to guage the value we are getting.  He believes there are opportunities to improve our 

current usages.  The team also met with the compliance people at the city and here.  It is We 

have not been maintaining our servers for years.  We will be finished updating our non-meditech 

servers next week.  They have identified and encrypted our mobile technology.  They have 

updated/encrypted about half of the 158 in the field.  We have identified 60 laptops that are not 

currently being used.   

Executive Session 

Report of Patient Safety Event     A. Muse 

Motion by Dr. Lindy Jones, to recess into executive session to discuss a matter which by law, 

municipal charter, or ordinance is required to be confidential or involve consideration of records 

that are not subject to public disclosure, specifically to a patient safety event. 

 

 

Board Quality Strategic Plan Initiative Oversight Summary 

People: 

3.1 Resolve electronic medical record concerns 

3.2 Expand workforce development programs 

Quality and Safety 

5.1 Stay current on technology and resources to facilitate risk management, data security, employee safety 

5/79



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund   

Board Quality Committee minutes 05/11/2022       

5.2 Develop quality initiatives that exceed accreditation and regulatory requirements 

 

Adjournment:  16:50 p.m. 

 

The next Board Quality meeting is scheduled for January 19, 2023 at 15:30. 

6/79



Page 1 of 4 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE  
MEDICAL EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  

November 2021 – October 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Medical Equipment Management Program’s “objectives” to ensure they 
represent the organizations most important concerns. Please list any new objectives or 
confirm that the current objectives still apply and no changes are recommended. 
 
No Changes were made to the Medical Equipment Management Plan – Objectives for 2022.  
They were reviewed and found current. 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Medical Equipment Management Program’s “definition of “scope” to assure it 
remains appropriate for the current structure of the organization. Please list any 
recommended changes to the scope or confirm that the current scope is still appropriate 
and no changes are recommended. 
 
No Changes were made to the Medical Equipment Management Plan – Scope for 2022.  They 
were reviewed and found current 
 
List the performance measures used and their outcomes to evaluate the Medical 
Equipment Management Program’s “performance”. Set new or higher goals for the 
upcoming year. Use the evaluation of the Medical Equipment Management Program’s  
 

 

 
Performance Measure 

 
Target Outcome  

AIM: Within the new system we 
propose to capture all new equipment 
at time of implementation and enter 
100 pieces of existing equipment into 
the account by August 2022.  The 
system should record the purchasing 
and receiving dates, implementation, 
and assignment of equipment, monitor 
and document end of life and disposal 
of each piece of medical equipment. 
 
 

100% system needs to be coordinated with 
material management accounting and 
biomed  
10% 
Action Plan for 2023 to improve 
implementation and assignment of 100 
new equipment. 
 (See in table 1a) on page 2. 
 
 
 
 

AIM: Work with Material Management 
to develop a process for disposing of 
surplus medical equipment and 
implement disposal within 3 months of 
removing it from the Medical 
Equipment inventory. 

100%                          100 % 

AIM: To organize and complete TMS 
PM updates by the end of the March 
2022. 
 

100%                           100% 
This process is still considered as 
needing improvement and work will 
continue in 2023.  

7/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Medical Equipment Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Action Plan for 2023 to improve implementation and assignment of 100 new equipment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       
          Q1 2023 
 
           15/100 

 
      Q2 2023  
 
       25/100 

       
         Q3 2023  
 
           50/100 

 
         Q4 2023 
 
         100/100 

Medical Equipment Management 
Proposed Performance Measures 

 
Target Comments 

& Action Plan 

AIM: Review and update preventative 
maintenance procedures. 
These activities and associated 
frequencies are in accordance with 
manufacturers’ recommendations. 
 

100% By march of 2023 develop a plan to 
update all risk one preventive 
maintenance procedure.  

 AIM: Within the new system we 
propose to capture all new equipment 
at time of implementation and enter 
100 pieces of existing equipment into 
the account by December 2023.  The 
system should record the purchasing 
and receiving dates, implementation, 
and assignment of equipment, monitor 
and document end of life and disposal 
of each piece of medical equipment. 

100% Action Plan for 2023 to improve 
implementation and assignment of 100 
new equipment. 
 (See in table 1a). 
 

AIM:   Managing risk through prompt 
preventive maintenance checks and 
calibration. 

100%   95% preventive maintenance and 
calibration completed by due dates (100% 
for high-risk equipment). 

8/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Medical Equipment Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 3 of 4 

Evaluate the “effectiveness” of the Medical Equipment Management Program’s 
“considering what went well, what has been accomplished and what needs improvement. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
What went well?  
Preventative Maintenance has been performed during the month it was scheduled. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
What has been accomplished? 

 
• Placed into service 29 new LG tv in MS 
• Placed 2 new Puritan Bennett 980 ventilator 

in RT. 
• Calibration of all Biomed Test Equipment. 

 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
What needs improvement? Include performance improvement ideas to be discussed and 
implemented.      
  Would like to take classes for the repair of the Philips monitoring system.   
 
 Maintenance/PM planning, Maintenance/PM implementation, Maintenance/PM monitoring.     
 Schedule in house TMS training by (June 1 2023)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Performance improvement projects initiated in response to the evaluation: 
 
Have all biomed personnel achieve at least two certification within the next 12 months. 
Schedule in house TMS training by (June 1 2023) or attend to TMS school. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Report presented                Date:   
 
Report completed by:   Edward Mkrtchyan     Date:  December12, 2022 
 
 
Notes: 
 
 
 

9/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Medical Equipment Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

10/79



 Page 1 of 5
  

 
SCOPE: 
The scope of the Medical Equipment Management Plan is to define the processes by which 
Bartlett Regional Hospital provides for the safe and proper use of medical equipment used in the 
patient care setting. 
 
POLICY: 
The physical and clinical risks of all equipment used in the diagnosis, treatment, monitoring and 
care of patients will be assessed and controlled. 
 
A. OBJECTIVES: The objectives of Bartlett Regional Hospital’s Medical Equipment 

Management Plan include the following: 
A.1. To minimize the clinical and physical risks of equipment through inspection, testing and 

regular maintenance; 
A.2. To establish criteria for identifying, evaluating and inventorying equipment, which is 

included in the program; 
A.3. To provide education to personnel on the capabilities, limitations and special 

applications of equipment; operating, safety and emergency procedures of 
equipment; the procedures to follow when reporting equipment management 
problems, failures and user errors; and the skills and/or information to perform 
maintenance activities. 
 

B. RESPONSIBILITY:  
B.1. The Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee is responsible for maintaining the Medical 

Equipment Management Plan. 
B.2. The Lead Biomedical Equipment Technician in consultation with the Facilities Director are 

responsible for maintaining the Medical Equipment Management Program. 
B.3. Each department Director is responsible for orienting new staff members to the 

capabilities, limitations, special applications of equipment, basic operating and safety 
procedures, emergency procedures if failure occurs, maintenance responsibilities, if 
applicable, and the reporting procedures for equipment problems, failures and user 
errors. 

 
C. THE SELECTION AND ACQUISITION OF MEDICAL EQUIPMENT: 

C.1. A needs assessment will be completed by each department for replacement or new 
equipment.    The Lead Biomedical Equipment Technician will determine if the equipment 
meets appropriate space requirements, load and phase requirements, Underwriters 
Laboratory requirements, minimum safety standards of 3 wire AC line cord with hospital 
grade plug, appropriate warranties and manufacturer's reliability prior to purchase.  If the 
equipment does not meet the above specifications, it may not be orderedordered, and an 
alternate choice may be submitted for approval. 

C.2. See Policy on Selection and Acquisition of Equipment. 
 

 
Title: Medical Equipment Management Plan 
Department: All 
  

11/79



 Page 2 of 5
  

D.  ESTABLISHING CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFYING, EVALUATING AND TAKING INVENTORY 
OF MEDICAL EQUIPMENT TO BE INCLUDED IN THE EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM: 
D.1. All mechanical and electrical patient care equipment will be evaluated prior to use, based 

on function including diagnosis, care, treatment and monitoring; physical risks associated 
with use, maintenance requirements and history of equipment incidents.  All incoming and 
existing equipment meeting the evaluation criteria are included in the Electronic 
Equipment Management Program, Total Maintenance System (TMS) by Accruent, Four 
Rivers Software Systems, Inc. 

D.2. All new equipment shall be inventoried and inspected prior to use for patient care or any 
other use.  Equipment that fails electrical safety tests shall not be approved for use until 
the deficiencies have been corrected.  There is a current inventory of all equipment 
included located in the Electronic Equipment Management Program (TMS). 

D.3. See Biomedical Equipment Management Policy, Equipment Management Numbers 
Formula/High Risk Inventory Policy and Electronic Equipment Management Program 
(TMS). 

 
E. HAZARD NOTICES AND RECALLS: 
      E.1. All product safety alerts, hazard notices and recalls will be directed to the Lead 

Biomedical Equipment Technician and the Facilities Director.  In the event the notices are 
not directed to these individuals, the notices will be immediately rerouted to the Risk 
Manager.  Lead Biomedical Equipment Technician will check the clinical equipment 
inventory to screen for equipment matches and will evaluate the severity of the risk.  In 
most cases, the notices may be addressed without removing equipment from service.  In 
the event equipment must be removed from service, the equipment is replaced with a 
safe effective substitute.  The Biomedical Engineering Department will impound 
equipment removed from use due to recall notices until it can be rendered safe. 

      E.2. The Risk Manager will report quarterly to the Environment of Care Committee on any 
hazard notices and recalls affecting the hospital and all follow up activities undertaken. 

      E.3. See Medical Device Recall Policy 
 
F. MONITORING AND REPORTING OF MEDICAL DEVICE INCIDENTS RESULTING IN 

DEATH, SERIOUS INJURY OR SERIOUS ILLNESS OF ANY INDIVIDUAL AS PER SAFE 
MEDICAL DEVICE ACT OF 1990: 

      F.1. The Safe Medical Device Act of 1990 requires that device user facilities (including 
hospitals, outpatient diagnostic and treatment facilities, nursing homes, ambulatory 
surgical facilities) report incidents to the device manufacturer when the facility determines 
a device has or may have caused or contributed to the death or serious injury of an 
individual.  The facility must also send a copy of the report to the FDA in the case of a 
death. 

      F.2. Bartlett Regional Hospital has established methods for reporting these events: 
F.2.1. The appropriate personnel will be notified immediately. 
F.2.2. All packaging and disposable materials will be returned. 
F.2.3. The device will be inspected and control settings and any damage will be recorded. 
F.2.4. The equipment will be bagged, tagged and sequestered by Security. 
F.2.5. An investigation shall be conducted. 
F.2.6. The Risk Manager is responsible for managing the Safe Medical Device Act 

reporting process. 
      F.3. See Safe Medical Devices Policy. 
 

12/79



 Page 3 of 5
  

G. INVESTIGATION AND REPORTING OF EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT PROBLEMS, 
FAILURES AND USER ERRORS: 

      G.1. All equipment failures will be investigated and reported via work order. Included in the 
work order will be the error/failure date, location of the equipment, cause or affected area, 
resolution and follow-up.  In the event the equipment problem was caused by an 
operational error, the user(s) will be in-serviced on the operation and use of the 
equipment. If the error/failure caused an adverse patient or staff event an incident report 
must be filed to the Risk Manager within 24 hours. 

      G.2. See:  Equipment Safety Reporting Malfunction Policy, Safe Medical Devices Policy. 
 
H. ASSESSING AND MINIMIZING CLINICAL AND PHYSICAL RISKS OF EQUIPMENT 

THROUGH INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTENANCE: 
      H.1. All mechanical and electrical patient care equipment will be evaluated prior to use.  

Preventive maintenance and safety inspections will be completed on all equipment in the 
program.  The results of inspections and maintenance will be kept in the Electronic 
Equipment Management Program (TMS). 

      H.2. Incident history is documented and maintained in the Biomedical Engineering office.  
Equipment displaying unusual repair history or unusual incidence of injury to staff or 
patients will be evaluated for necessary changes/replacement. 

      H.3. All other non-clinical electrically powered equipment, located in the patient care vicinity, 
will be evaluated prior to use and receive preventive maintenance.  This equipment will 
include, but not be limited to lamps, televisions, calculators, radios and computers.  This 
equipment will also be safety inspected at least annually by the Biomedical Engineering 
Department and a tag or sticker will be affixed. 

      H.4. The Lead Biomedical Equipment Technician will develop preventive maintenance 
procedure for all medical devices in the hospital.  The preventive maintenance 
procedures are developed using the manufacturer's preventive maintenance 
recommendations, NFPA 99-2012 standards and ANSI standards.  These procedures are 
located in the Equipment Management Software Program (TMS). 
See: Preventative Maintenance Policy. 

 
I. THE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM INCLUDES AN ORIENTATION 

AND EDUCATION PROGRAM FOR EQUIPMENT MAINTAINERS: 
      I.1. Thorough training will be provided to equipment maintainers upon hire and as needed 

thereafter regarding the maintenance and care of medical equipment.   
      I.2. All equipment maintainers will be evaluated annually for their knowledge and skills 

necessary to perform equipment repair and maintenance according to their job 
specifications. 

      I.3. Staff will be oriented and educated on the reporting process for equipment management 
problems, failures and user errors. 

 
J. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES: 
      J.1. Devices, which meets Bartlett Regional Hospital's criteria for critical equipment to patient 

safety, shall have emergency procedures in the event a malfunction or failure occurs.  
Equipment considered critical to patient safety includes life support, life sustaining or other 
critical equipment whose malfunction or failure may result in an adverse patient outcome. 

     J.2.  Each department will develop and follow specific clinical response procedures in the    
event of an equipment failure: (See Medical Equipment Failure Chart, 8360.633)? 

J.2.1.  Institute clinical emergency procedures required ensuring patient care is not        
compromised. 

J.2.2.  Equipment will be removed from service and tagged immediately. 

Commented [KGS1]: Edward nor I know of this chart. 
Cannot find. 

13/79



 Page 4 of 5
  

J.2.3.  If replacement equipment is necessary; Biomedical Engineering will be notified to   
obtain a replacement. Backup equipment is available for many types of equipment 
within the user department. 

J.2.4.  Users may notify Biomedical Engineering of the need for service by calling the main 
shop phone number: 796-8461, Monday – Friday, 0800 – 1630.  If alternate 
equipment is not available emergency coverage is provided, five-days-a-week 
4:30PM – 8:00AM Monday – Friday and 24hours on Saturday and Sundays by 
calling ext. 8892, Be sure to receive the House Supervisor’s approval before calling 
the after Hours Emergency On Call Phone. 

J.2.5.  Imaging equipment problems are reported by the department directly to the O.E.M. 
who maintains oversight and responsibility for those items. 

      J.3. See Medical Equipment Safety Reporting Malfunction. 
 
K. THE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN INCLUDES A MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 

ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM: 
      K.1. Thorough training will be provided regarding the capabilities, limitations, special 

applications of equipment, basic operating and safety procedures, emergency procedures 
if failure occurs, maintenance responsibilities, if applicable, and the reporting procedures 
for equipment problems, failures and user errors included in the program by department 
managers or designees in involved departments.  All users of equipment shall be 
evaluated annually for competency according to the components of their job 
specifications. 

      K.2. See Medical Equipment Safety Reporting Malfunction. 
 
L. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
      L.1. There is a planned, systematic, interdisciplinary approach to process design and 

performance measurement, analysis and improvement related to organization wide 
safety.  The Utilities and Equipment Sub-Committee will develop and establish 
performance measures and related outcomes, in a collaborative fashion, based on those 
priority issues known to be associated with the healthcare environment.  Performance 
measures and outcomes will be prioritized based upon high risk; high volume, problem 
prone situations and potential or actual sentinel event related occurrences.  Criteria for 
performance improvement measurement and outcome indicator selection will be based 
on the following: 

L.1.1. The measure can identify the events it was intended to identify: 
L.1.1.1. The measure has a documented numerator and a denominator statement or 

description of the population to which the measure is applicable; 
L.1.1.2. The measure has defined data elements and allowable values; 
L.1.1.3. The measure can detect changes in performance over time; 
L.1.1.4. The data intended for collection are available; 
L.1.1.5. Results can be reported in a way that is useful to the organization and other 

interested stakeholders. 
L.1.2. The Utilities and Equipment Sub-Committee on an ongoing basis monitors 

performance regarding actual or potential risk related to one or more of the following: 
L.1.2.1. Staff knowledge and skills; 
L.1.2.2. Level of staff participation; 
L.1.2.3. Monitoring and inspection activities; 
L.1.2.4. Emergency and incident reporting; 
L.1.2.5. Inspection, preventive maintenance and testing of safety equipment. 

L.2. Other performance measures and outcomes will be established by the Utilities and 
Equipment Sub-Committee , based on the criterion listed above.  Data sources, frequency 

14/79



 Page 5 of 5
  

of data collection, individual(s) responsible for data collection, aggregation and reporting 
will be determined by the Utilities and Equipment Sub-Committee. 

      L.3. To identify opportunities for improvement, the Utilities and Equipment Sub-Committee will 
follow the organization's improvement methodology. 

      L.4. Should the Utilities and Equipment Sub-Committee feel a team approach is necessary for 
performance and process improvement to occur; they will follow the organization's 
performance improvement guidelines for improvement team member selection.  
Determination of team necessity will be based on those priority issues listed (high risk, 
volume and problem prone situations and sentinel event occurrence).  The Utilities and 
Equipment Sub-Committee will review the necessity of team development, requesting 
team participation only in those instances where it is felt the Environment of Care 
Committee's contributions toward improvement would be limited (due to specialty, limited 
scope and/or knowledge of the subject matter).  Should team development be deemed 
necessary, primarily, team members will be selected on the basis of their knowledge of 
the subject identified for improvement, and those individuals who are "closest" to the 
subject identified.  The team will be interdisciplinary, as appropriate to the subject to be 
improved. 

      L.5. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be presented to the 
Environment of Care Committee by the Facilities Director at least on a quarterly basis, 
with a report of performance outcome forwarded to the Governing Body annually. 

 
M. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN: 
      M.1. The annual evaluation of the Medical Equipment Management Program will include a 

review of the scope according to the current The Joint Commission standards to 
evaluate the degree in which the program meets accreditation standards and the current 
risk assessment of the hospital.  A comparison of the expectations and actual results of 
the program will be evaluated to determine if the goals and objectives of the program 
were met.  The overall performance of the program will be reviewed by evaluating the 
results of performance improvement outcomes.  The overall effectiveness of the program 
will be evaluated by determining the degree that expectations were met. 

      M.2. The performance and effectiveness of the Medical Equipment Management Program 
shall be reviewed by the Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee as well as the 
Environment of Care Committee. 

       
 
This Document was last reviewed in November 2021December 2022 
Medical Equipment Management P... v.10. 

15/79



 
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF  

THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM January - December 2022 
 
Evaluate the Life Safety Management Plans “objectives” to ensure they represent the organization's most 
important concerns. Please list any new objectives or confirm that the current objectives still apply, and no 
changes are recommended. 

The Life Safety Management Plan was reviewed by the subcommittee, and it was approved in November 
with some changes for year 2022 review. We had updated wording to clarify what numbers to call for an 
emergency if on a Bartlett programed phone or an outside phone and included NFPA (National Fire 
Protection Association) 99 in the wording as it is the additional regulations cited in TJC (The Joint 
Commission) standards. It has been discussed with the Emergency Management Chair to ensure that their 
policies have the same emergency numbers and verbiage. The plan is following the current Joint 
Commission Life Safety Standards and current NFPA 99 and 101, 2012 Edition regulations. The next 
scheduled review is due November 2023.  

Evaluate the Life Safety Management Plans definition of “scope” to assure it remains appropriate for the 
current structure of the organization. Please list any recommended changes to the scope or confirm that 
the current scope is still appropriate, and no changes are recommended. 

The Life Safety subcommittee identified an update to the scope of the plan. TJC requires valve tamper 
switches and water flow devices to be tested twice a year and not annually, so this was updated to the plan 
to state every 6 months. This was communicated to the Facilities Director and Manager. 

The scope of the Life Safety subcommittee defines the process by which Bartlett protects patients, 
employees, visitors and property from fire, smoke, and other products of combustion. Life Safety risks are 
assessed with Facility department walk-throughs, department fire drills, occurrence reports, TJC tracers, 
environmental risk assessments and fire drill evaluations.  

List the performance measures used and their outcomes to evaluate the plans “performance.” Set new or 
higher goals for the upcoming year. Use the evaluation of the plans “effectiveness” section to aid in the 
development of the new performance measures. 

 

Performance Measures (2022) GOAL MET OUTCOME 
Work with Facilities to support updating the addressable 
locations system in the Administration Buildings to have 
up-to-date titles, fire pull and fire point locations. 

100% 100% 
With the collaboration of the Facilities 
Department, we successfully completed this 
measure. 

Provide annual hands-on training to staff for using PASS 
with a fire extinguisher. 

100% 20% 

The subcommittee has provided four opportunities 
for staff to practice using PASS with a simulated 
fire. The RRC (Rainforest Recovery Center) staff 
received it at an annual fire drill, the Surgical 
Services staff received it as the annual OR fire drill 
and we provided two opportunities to staff through 
education days where we provided PASS practice 
and training and use of the evacuation chairs. We 
feel that we have completed this performance 
measure 20% as we did not connect with many 
departments, nor is this still offered in NEO (NEW 
EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION). The committee is 
working with Staff Devlopment and HR to formulate 
a time to provide hands-on training for staff starting 
with new employees.  

16/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (continued) 
 

   

The subcommittee will review 100% of the fire drill reports 
and use reports to identify areas to provide education to 
staff.  100% 100% 

The subcommittee has reviewed monthly fire drills 
each month and acted on any identified staff 
education or safety needs. As a subcommittee, we 
feel this measure should be added to the monthly 
standing agenda items from now on.  

Track, monitor, and report required fire inspections and 
corrective actions to the subcommittee to ensure 
compliance and identify topics for staff education. 

100% 100% 

The Facilities team developed a 
corrective action from a TJC finding 
around non-complaint fire doors that 
they would inspect 10 random fire 
doors in the facility each month. From 
this practice they have continued to 
identify about 3/10 doors that are non-
complaint. This practice has notably 
helped keep the hospital in 
compliance with fire door safety and 
goes above the standard 
requirements. 

 

New Performance Measures (2023) GOAL MET OUTCOME 
Provide annual hands-on training to staff in using PASS 
with a fire extinguisher for 90% of the full-time staff. 

100%   

Complete the Fire Response Plan for Bartlett by 10.31.2023. 

100%   

Complete new evacuation plan and process with 
Emergency Management coordinator by 6.2023.  Provide 
staff education through Relias and do a hospital drill by 
6.2023. 

100%   

  Develop a staff knowledge assessment questionnaire to 
see the percentage of staff that know the new evacuation 
plan/process (goal to get at least 60% of staff to respond). 
Update the BRH Fire Safety Relias training to address the 
knowledge gaps by 9.2023.  

100%   

 

Evaluate the “effectiveness” of the Life Safety Management Plan considering what went well, what has 
been accomplished and what needs improvement. 

 

What went well/ What has been accomplished? 

• The Life Safety Code requirements reviewed and updated as compliant with current TJC standards. 
• Continuing to maintain compliance with fire drill TJC standards. 
• The subcommittee has successfully performed a fire drill in the OR with Surgical Services Staff and 

providers. This included OR fire prevention training (based on AORN (Association of Peri-operative 
Registered Nurses) guidelines) to all the Surgical Services staff through Relias.  

• Successfully finished and assigned Bartlett specific Fire safety training through Relias to all staff. 
This will count as our SWARMS and be a way to reach all staff. The Committee note that this 
training will need to be reviewed annually to ensure its compliance.  

• Life Safety Day was a successful educational opportunity for staff/ departments. Staff and providers 
were very engaged.  

17/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (continued) 
 

   

• Overall, a successful TJC survey from the engineer  
• RRC staff fire safety training was a success. 
• Facilities hands-on training for staff to practice PASS with a fire extinguisher was a successful with 

the four opportunities the subcommittee offered it.  
• Fire caulking project continues  
• Fire door project continues. Able to fix doors that are in stock. Still waiting for some doors to arrive.  
• Provided a BRH (Bartlett Regional Hospital) safety corner in the Bartlett Buzz to staff on Life Safety 

practices. 
• Have two new frontline staff members.  
• Completed addressable location system, in the Administration Buildings early in 2022 year.  
• Will put reviewing monthly fire drill reports on our monthly standing agenda items to continue past 

this year as the subcommittee found this to be an excellent way to address staff education needs in 
real time. 

• Success in checking 10 random fire doors monthly as reported 3/10 doors a month are non-
complaint.  
 

What needs improvement?  

• Better communication with departments on date/time of installation of fire doors 
• Plan more hands-on fire extinguisher practices for staff 
• Fire drills include documentation of staff that practice the hands-on fire extinguisher practice.  

Include performance improvement ideas to be discussed. 

Performance improvement projects initiated in response to the evaluation: 

• Reinstate hands-on fire extinguisher training in NEO. 
• Continue monthly examination of 10 random Hospital fire doors to assess proper functions. 

 

Report presented to Performance Improvement Committee: Autumn Muse         Date:   11.10.2022 _ 

Notes: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Report completed by ____Autumn Muse________ Date     11.10.2022  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (continued) 
 

   

 

Page 2 of 2 

19/79



  
Life Safety Management Plan 
 
 
  

Page 1 of 5 

 
 

Title: Life Safety Management Plan 
 
PURPOSE:  To provide an environment of care that is fire-safe and to design processes to 
prevent fires and protect patients, staff, and visitors in the event of a fire. The goals include the 
following: 
 

A. To assure that the building is in compliance with applicable Federal, state and local codes 
and standards, and National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101, 2012 standards for 
hospitals and The Joint Commission Standards;; 

B. To provide education to personnel on the elements of the Life Safety Management 
Program including organizational protocols for response to, and evacuation in the event of 
a fire, 

C. To assure that personnel training in the Life Safety Management Program is effective, 
D. To test and maintain the fire alarm and detection systems, 
E. To institute interim life safety measures during construction or fire alarm or detection 

systems failures. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY:  

• The Facilities Director and the Life Safety Management sub-committee of the Environment 
of Care committee share joint responsibility for the Life Safety Program and maintaining 
compliance with the Life Safety Code.   

• Each department Director is responsible for orienting new staff members to the department 
and job specific fire safety procedures.   

• All employees of Bartlett Regional Hospital are responsible for learning the hospital wide 
and departmental fire safety plans. 

• LIPs (Licensed Independent Practitioner) are responsible for learning hospital wide fire 
safety plans and job specific fire safety procedures.  

 
POLICY: 
A. THE PROTECTION OF PATIENTS, EMPLOYEES, LIPs VISITORS AND PROPERTY FROM 

FIRE, SMOKE AND OTHER PRODUCTS OF COMBUSTION: 
A.1. Provide appropriate fire protection equipment, employee training and interim life safety 

measures.   
     A.2 In-service employees and LIPs on the organizational response to fire, general fire safety, 

instructions for their departments and/or worksites, location of fire extinguishers, oxygen 
shutoffs and evacuation routes.   

    A.3. Oxygen shutoffs will be the responsibility of the supervisor in charge of the area in which 
these valves are located.  Turn off valves only if told to do so. 

    A.4. Fire Emergency required knowledge for all employees: 
      A.4.1. Know the location of the nearest fire alarm. 
      A.4.2. Know the emergency number to dial.  Dial “8900”. 
      A.4.3. Know the location of fire extinguishers and how to use them. 
      A.4.4. Know the location of all exits. 
      A.4.5. Know proper evacuation procedures and routes. 

20/79



  
Life Safety Management Plan 
 
 
  

Page 2 of 5 

    A.5. Each department has departmental fire procedures which can be found in Policy Tech:  
Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire or for general response, refer to the Emergency Colored Flipchart 

 
 
B. INSPECTING, TESTING AND MAINTAINING FIRE PROTECTION AND LIFE SAFETY 
SYSTEMS: 

    B.1. The following fire alarm and detection equipment is tested and documented as required 
by NFPA: 

           B.1.1. Initiating devices are tested: 
B.1.1.1. All supervisory signal devices (except valve tamper switches) at least 

quarterly. 
B.1.1.2. All valve tamper switches and water flow devices at least annually. 
B.1.1.3. All duct detectors, electromechanical releasing devices, heat detectors, 

manual fire alarm pull stations and smoke detectors annually 
B.1.1.4. Occupant alarm notification devices are tested at least annually including all 

audible devices, speakers and visible devices. 
B.1.1.5. Off-site emergency forces notification transmission equipment is monitored 

automatically and continually by the fire alarm system and alarm monitoring 
service. For more details see Fire Alarm System policy.  

 B.1.2. All automatic extinguishing and protection equipment shall be inspected and tested as 
followsas follows:  
B.1.2.1. Main drain tests - at least annually at all system risers; 

B.1.2.2. Fire department connections - inspected at least quarterly; 
B.1.2.3. Kitchen automatic fire extinguishing systems – every 6 months - (discharge 

of fire extinguishing system not required); 
B.1.2.4. Portable fire extinguishers inspected at least monthly; maintained at least 

annually. For more details see the Fire Extinguisher Program policy. 
B.1.2.5. Fire and smoke dampers - at least every 6 years to verify they fully close; 
B.1.2.6. Automatic smoke detection shutdown devices for air handling equipment is 

monitored and tested annually; 
B1.2.7.  Helipad Fire Suppression will be tested annually 

B.1.3.  Fire Door Inspections 
B.1.3.1 All fire doors shall be inspected annually in accordance with procedures 

given below. 
B.1.3.2 Inspect condition of all door hardware (hinges, crash bar hardware, etc.). 
B.1.3.3 Inspect for positive latching of doors when released and closing under own 

weight. 
B.1.3.4  Any deficiencies shall be noted and immediate steps taken to correct them. 
B.1.3.5. Horizontal and vertical sliding and rolling fire doors - at least annually for 

proper operation and full closure. 
B.1.4 Elevator recall testing 

B1.4.1 Firefighter Emergency Operations (FEO) systems, also referred to as 
elevator recall, will be tested monthly by a competent contractor. A written 
record of the findings will be made and kept on the premises. 

 
C. REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING LIFE SAFETY CODE AND FIRE PROTECTION 

DEFICIENCIES, FAILURES AND USER ERRORS: 

21/79



  
Life Safety Management Plan 
 
 
  

Page 3 of 5 

     C.1. A comprehensive plan to correct any Life Safety deficiencies, which occur or are identified 
will be developed immediately in writing and will address: 

       C.1.1. All Life Safety Code deficiencies 
       C.1.2. Corrective actions (plan for improvement) 
       C.1.3. Total cost of actions and specific funding information 
       C.1.4. Reasonable schedule for completion, prioritized with available funding and 

concurrent projects 
       C.1.5. Interim life safety measures will be implemented and enforced as necessary 

    C.2. All fire protection equipment failures or user errors shall be reported immediately and 
appropriate action taken.  When a user error occurs, retraining will be conducted. 

D. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PLAN: 
D.1. Review of the scope based the current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the 

degree in which the program meets accreditation standards. 
 and the current risk assessment of the hospital.   
D.2  CompareD.2 Compare expectations and actual results of the program to determine if the 

goals and objectives of the program were met.   
D.3  Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the program determining the degree that 

expectations where met,  including an evaluation of the effectiveness of personnel 
training related to the Life Safety Plan and its components. 

D.4. The performance and effectiveness of the Life Safety Management Program shall be 
reviewed by the Environment of Care Committee, with summary reports delivered to 
the Board Quality Council. 

D.5.  Annual Evaluation documentation will be maintained. 
 

E. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
E.1.The Environment of Care Committee monitors performance regarding actual or potential 

risk related to one or more of the following: 
      E.1.1. Staff knowledge and skills; 
      E.1.2. Level of staff participation; 
      E.1.3. Monitoring and inspection activities; 
      E.1.4. Emergency and incident reporting; 
      E.1.5. Inspection, preventive maintenance and testing of safety equipment 

E.2. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be presented to the 
Environment of Care Committee by the Safety Officer and Life Safety Subcommittee 
annually. 

E.3. The following performance measures are suggested: 
E.3.1. Percent of staff able to demonstrate their knowledge, skill and level of 

participation in the life safety management program. 
E.3.2. Number of fire drills conducted with at least 50% of these on an 

unannounced basis 
E.3.3. Percent of staff who can describe organizational protocols for fire response 
E.3.4. Percent of staff who can describe evacuation procedures for their unit 
E.3.5. Percent fully operational fire doors 
E.3.6. Percent of tests completed for: 

E.3.6.1. Supervisory signal devices - Quarterly 
E.3.6.2. Valve tamper switches - Semiannually 
E.3.6.3. Duct detectors - Annually 

22/79



  
Life Safety Management Plan 
 
 
  

Page 4 of 5 

E.3.6.4. Smoke detectors - Annually 
E.3.6.5. Heat detectors - Annually 
E.3.6.6. Manual fire alarm pull stations - Annually 
E.3.6.7. Electromechanical releasing devices - Annually 
E.3.6.8. Occupant alarm notification devices - Annually 
E.3.6.9. Emergency forces notification transmission equipment - 

Quarterly 
F. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

     F.1. Emergency procedures will be developed and updates maintained in Policy Techthe 
document control system. 

F.2. The following emergency procedures will be implemented in the event of a fire: 
F.2.1. R = Rescue or remove person(s) from immediate fire scene / room. 
F.2.2. A = Alert personnel by activating nearest fire alarm pull station, then call PAS 

(dial 8900) and report exact location of the fire. 
F.2.3. C = Confine fire and smoke by closing all doors and windows in the area. 
F.2.4. E = Extinguish the fire using fire extinguisher if safe to do so. 

     F.3. General Instructions for All Employees and LIPs: 
F.3.1. Keep telephone lines clear for fire control. 
F.3.2. Do not use elevators. 
F.3.3. Make sure all fire, corridor and room doors are closed. 
F.3.4. Clear all corridors of equipment and obstructions. 
F.3.5. All nursing personnel shall report to their areas and remain there for instructions. 
F.3.6. All other personnel shall report to their areas and await emergency assignment 

as needed. 
F.3.7. Reassure patients.  Inform them that the alarm has been turned in, the 

emergency plan is in effect, and there is an abundance of help to assist as 
needed. 

F.3.8. Know evacuation routes 
F.3.9  Keep exits clear of obstructions 

     F.4. See Emergency Management Plan; Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire 
 
G. REVIEW OF PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS OF FURNISHINGS AND EQUIPMENT FOR FIRE 

SAFETY 
G.1. All purchases of hospital furnishings and equipment will be reviewed to assure that they 

meet the NFPA requirements for fire retardant or non-combustibility. y.  
G.2. The Facilities Director Safety Officer and the Director of Materials Management are 

responsible for reviewing new products to verify they meet code requirements.   
G.2.1  Materials Management will inform the Safety OfficerFacilities Director of any 

unavailability of NFPA approved items. 
G.3  The Facilities Director is responsible for the installation of fire rated products during 

construction. 
H. ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION TO LIFE SAFETY PROGRAM 

H.1. All personnel (including volunteers, students, interns, physicians and other licensed 
independent practitioners) will be oriented to the Life Safety Plan and their roles in the 
event of a fire.  This includes: 
H.1.1  use of fire alarm systems  
H.1.2  containing smoke/fire with building compartmentalization,  

23/79



  
Life Safety Management Plan 
 
 
  

Page 5 of 5 

H.1.3  preparing for building evacuation including the location and proper use of 
equipment to evacuate or transport patients to a safe area.   

H.2 All new personnel will receive general fire safety information before beginning work in their 
respective departments.   

H.3 Department specific orientation will be done in their home department by knowledgeable 
staff to include: 
H.3.1  location of fire alarm pull stations and extinguishers,  
H.3.2  evacuation routes,  including all exits  
H.3.3  department specific fire hazards,  
H.3.4  department specific concerns.   

H.4 All employees  will review fire safety information at least annually in a mandatory 
continuing education program (classroom, self-study, or online review)   
H.4.1 Attendance records will be maintained by the employee and the education 

department for mandatory training   
H.4.2 The Life Safety Subcommittee will obtain data on the number of employees 

completing orientation and continuing education and report to the EOC Committee. 
H.5  Fire Drills will be conducted based on recommendations: 

H.5.1  Clinical Areas:  one per quarter per shift 
H.5.2  Business offices:  one per year 

H.6. Effectiveness of the education and training program will be evaluated via ongoing review 
of fire drill critiques and periodic random on-site “swarmingswarms”.  

 
I. MAINTAINING BUILDING STRUCTURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE PROTECTION: 

I.1. All buildings associated with Bartlett Regional Hospital will maintain compliance with the 
appropriate provisions of the Life Safety Code of NFPA.  Documentation of all life safety 
requirements will be maintained on an ongoing basis.  The Facilities Director is 
responsible for maintaining and managing all structural elements of life safety. 

I.2. During periods of construction, renovation, transition, see Interim (Construction) Life Safety 
Management PlanPolicy.    

 
REFERENCES: 
Interim Life Safety Management Plan; document control reference number 1485, Interim 

(Construction) Life Safety Policy 
Emergency Management Plan: Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire; document control reference number 2149, 

08. Emergency Operations Plan ANNEX FIRE Vol 2  (available in Policy Tech under Vol. 2 
Annex: Fire) 

Fire Extinguisher Program ;Policy document control reference number 1486 
Fire Alarm System; document control reference number 1487  
Annual Evaluation of the Life Safety Management Program (available on the “W:\” drive)  
National Fire Protection Association; NFPA 101, 2012 Edition 
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards Manual; EC.01.01.01 EP7, EC.04.01.01 

EP9 
The Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards Manual; 2021 Life Safety Chapter  
 

 
 
 

24/79



Page 1 of 5 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE 
Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program 

2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program ‘s “objectives” to ensure they 
represent the organizations most important concerns. Please list any new objectives or confirm 
that the current objectives still apply, and no changes are recommended. 
 
The current Hazardous Materials Plan was reviewed by the subcommittee members in May 2022.  No new elements 
were added in the plan, but still compliant with current Joint Commission Standards.  Committee had compliance 
review in May 2022 for new or updated standards.  Current objectives and goals per the plan are still applicable: 
 
The objective of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan is to develop a system that addresses the 
identification, selection, handling, storage, use and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. 
  
Individual Goals of the plan: 
To provide education concerning Hazardous Materials and waste Management Program 
To identify, evaluate, inventory, and assure waste generated follows established laws 
To establish emergency procedure concerning Hazardous Materials 
 
No major changes are recommended.  Established review per compliance indicates next official review of policy 
October 2023.   
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program‘s definition of “scope” to 
assure it remains appropriate for the current structure of the organization. Please list any 
recommended changes to the scope or confirm that the current scope is still appropriate, and no 
changes are recommended. 
 
Current Scope of the established policy is still appropriate.  No changes are recommended. 
 
The scope of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan defines the processes which Bartlett Regional 
Hospital utilizes to provide a safely controlled environment where hazardous materials are used in the facility by 
proactive risk assessments to reduce the risk of injury. 
 
Hazardous materials and waste risks are continually assessed and reviewed during hazard Relias training, the 
collection of information through occurrence reports, product management and review by the EOC Committee.  Risk 
levels are determined by the level of potential consequences that are associated with the types, quantities, and 
inherent physical and chemical properties of the hazardous materials utilized by the facility. 
 
Bartlett Regional Hospital is conditionally exempt small quantity generator.  We have < 220 lb per month. 
 
Bartlett Regional Hospital uses a Sani Pak system, which is an alternative means of processing Medical Waste. 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
List the performance measures used and their outcomes to evaluate the Hazardous Materials and 
Waste Management Program‘s “performance”. Set new or higher goals for the upcoming year. 
Use the evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program‘s “effectiveness” 
section to aid in the development of the new performance measures. 
 
 
 
 
 

25/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Performance Measures Goals/ 
Benchmark Results 20, 

21, early 22 

How do you find a Safety Data Sheet at Bartlett Regional Hospital? 
 

100%  
93% 

 

How many elements are included in a Safety Data Sheet? 81% 84% 
 

What section on a Safety Data Sheet addresses First Aide? 83%  
80% 

Have you had or have you reviewed Hazardous Communication with your 
direct supervisor in the last 12 months? 

100%  
54% 

What is the difference between an Incidental Spill/Fumes vs a Non-
Incidental Spill/Fumes? 

50% 56% 

How often must an eyewash, shower or personal wash bottle be checked? 100% 75% 

At locations where hazardous chemicals are handled by employee’s 
proper eyewash and body drenching equipment shall be available no 
more than 10 feet from the work station(s).   

88% 49% 

Three questions below were only asked of nursing staff involved with 
pharmaceutical recycling/disposal 

n/a  
 

You are wasting a partial dose of Phenergan.  Where do you waste this 
liquid medication? 

98%  
76% 

You are giving a half dose of Coumadin and you need to waste the other 
half.  Where do you waste it? 

97%  
65% 

You are cleaning up after a procedure.  There are 4x4 gauzes saturated 
with body fluids/blood. Where do you throw away the saturated gauzes? 

98%  
95% 

 

 

1.  For 2022, initial review of results from Relias were mostly below benchmark from 2021.  The Hazardous Materials 
committee determined the Haz Mat training needed major updating.  This was performed and released in March of 
2022.  Results above are a combination of results from 2020, 2021 and early 2022, which there were a total of 469 
staff who completed.  As of December 2022, only 170 staff have completed the new 2022 Haz Mat Relias training.  
Due to lack of numbers, the Relias 2022 Haz Mat training will continue to be offered through 2023 in order to compile 
stats with greater number of participants.  Below is a description of updates to the new 2022 Relias Haz Mat training.  
Updates are below: 

 
a. SDS question – change how many elements are included in SDS to - There are 16 elements on a safety data 

sheet? True 
b. SDS question – change what section addresses first aide to - Does the safety data sheet address first aide in 

section 4? True  
c. Return tab be included on test. 
d. Add who is responsible for removal and disposal of HAZ MAT – Maintenance 
e. Haz Com training – required yearly and is all addressed in Relias after initial review. 
f. Fixed broken link for MSDS online or add the instruction to go to favorites or bookmarks with browsers. 
g. Increased size of graphic - small and hard to read, especially the SDS sheet 
h. Skill check off for safety needs to be 2022 

26/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 3 of 5 

i. Eyewash stations, showers, and other plumbed devices must be checked weekly.  When is working with 
hazards, staff should have unobstructed access no more than 100 feet to washing stations.  Personal 
eyewash bottles are used for first aid and to assist in getting an employee to an eyewash station if necessary. 
 The personal eyewash does not replace the need for a plumbed station.  Personal eyewash bottles must also 
be checked weekly to ensure the integrity of the bottle has not been compromised and the bottle is not past 
its expiration date. 
 

2. Below are the new performance standards which were created for the 2022 Haz Mat training and released in March 
of 2022. 
 
 
 
New Performance Measures Goals/ 

Benchmark 
 

How do you find a Safety Data Sheet at Bartlett Regional Hospital? 
 

100%  
 
 

There are 16 elements on a safety data sheet? 
 

81%  
 

The 4th element in an SDS addresses first aid.* 
 

83%  
 

If your job duties require to manage or handle hazardous waste, it is 
required that you received orientation and/or education* 
 

100%  
 

What is the difference between an Incidental Spill/Fumes (minor) vs. a 
Non Incidental Spill/Fumes (major)?* 
 

50%  

At locations where hazardous chemicals are handled by employees 
proper eyewash and body drenching equipment shall be available no 
more than 10 feet from the work station(s).* 
 

100%  

How often must an eyewash or shower be checked?* 
 

88%  

Four questions below were only asked of nursing staff involved with 
pharmaceutical recycling/disposal 

n/a  
 

Who is responsible for handling pharm waste buckets when full? 
 

75%  
 

You are wasting a partial dose of Phenergan. Where do you waste this 
liquid medication?* 
 

76%  
 

You are giving a half dose of Coumadin and you need to waste the other 
half. Where do you waste it?* 
 

65%  

You are cleaning up after a procedure. There are 4X4 gauzes saturated 
with bodily fluids/blood. Where do you throw away the saturated gauzes?* 
 

95%  
 

 
 
 
 

27/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Evaluate the “effectiveness” of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program 
considering what went well, what has been accomplished and what needs improvement. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
What went well? 
 
1.  Review of all EOC Haz Mat policies 
 
2.  Update Hazardous Materials Relias training 
 
3.  Assistance from committee members in nursing units, to assure compliance with pharmaceutical disposal. - Shawn 
 
4.  Maintained volumes to remain as a small quantity generator, <220 lbs 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
What has been accomplished? 
 
1.  Hazardous Communication Plan review completed in December 2022   
 
2.  Continued communication for follow up with pharmaceutical waste, by assuring department labeling. 
 
3. Communication to all department managers to assure they have current Safety Data Sheets 
 
4.  The subcommittee maintained all policies and procedures as per compliance needs.  Subcommittee will update 
policies and procedures as indicated by RISK or Quality.   
 
5.  Assured that safety features (eye wash, showers) are maintained per compliance.   
 
6.  Assured general knowledge of Haz Mat concerns are brought to the employees through use Relias. 
 
7.  Walk through of facility by committee members or department Directors to review effectiveness in December 2022.  
This review will be used to assess questions for Hazardous Training in Relias.  Areas reviewed include 
 a.  Review of number of SDS uploads.  Completed 12/2022 
  1 requested and 54 were uploaded 
 b.  Review of eyewash/shower logs.  Completed 12/2022 
  Logs were found with all units discovered. 
 c.  Review of each departments pharmaceutical waste systems.  Completed 12/2022 
  Communication done with all nurse supervisor to review. 
 d.  Check that policy attachments to spill buckets is present. Completed 12/2022 
  Policy found in all discovered buckets. 
 
8.  New pharmaceutical waste buckets were designed and placed in areas of the hospital (CCU).  These buckets are 
designed to hold two containers (toxic and non-toxic), as there was not enough room for two separate mounts.   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
What needs improvement? Include performance improvement ideas to be discussed and 
implemented. 
 

With a new EVS manager on the committee, recycling, specifically confidential waste needs to be addressed.  
Based on discussion at the EOC meeting, confidential waste process to go back to subcommittee to work on 
new process and present to EOC. 

 
Did find with review of Relias training, an error with distance needed.  Current course has 100 ft to travel, but 
per OSHA, travel of no more than 55ft or 10 seconds. 

 
No other issues currently 

28/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance improvement projects initiated in response to the evaluation: 
 

Based on review of results, the committee will review Relias training in December 2023.  The current training 
can be modified to assure understanding of staff for specific topics.  Since new training was created in March 
of 2022, only 170 participants have completed.  For 2023, will maintain the 2022 Haz Mat training.  
 
Review of SDS in each department 
 

 Staff development contacted to correct error for eyewash on the 2022 Haz Mat Relias training. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report presented to Environment of Care Committee:               Date:  _________________ 
Report completed by:   ___John Fortin_______       Date:  ___12/2/22______________ 
Notes: 

29/79



 

Title:    HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Department/s:   HOSPITALWIDE 

 Author:   Haz-Mat Subcommittee 

 

8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 1 of 7 

 
POLICY:    It is the policy of Bartlett Regional Hospital to comply with all federal, State of 
Alaska laws and regulations relating to the proper and safe handling and disposal of all 
hazardous materials and waste. 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
A. Bartlett Regional Hospital provides comprehensive healthcare and health promotion for the 

people of Juneau and communities of northern Southeast Alaska. 
 
B. To this effort Bartlett Regional Hospital provides a healthy and safe environment for our 

patients, visitors and staff by maintaining a process to effectively manage hazardous materials 
and waste throughout the facility.  

 
 
DEFINITIONS:  Hazardous Material:  Any material for which there is a physical or health 
hazard. 
 
 
SCOPE:    
A. The scope of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan defines the processes 

which Bartlett Regional Hospital utilizes to provide a safely controlled environment where 
hazardous materials are used in the facility by proactive risk assessments to reduce the 
risk of injury. 

 
B. Hazardous materials and waste risks are continually assessed and reviewed duringstaff 

Relias training, the collection of information through occurrence reports, product 
management and review by the EOC Committee.  Risk levels are determined by the level 
of potential consequences that are associated with the types, quantities, and inherent 
physical and chemical properties of the hazardous materials utilized by the facility. 

 
C. Bartlett Regional Hospital is conditionally exempt small quantity generator.  We have < 220 

lb Flam/Tox (RCRA) per month. 
 
D.  Bartlett Regional Hospital uses a Sani Pak system, which is an alternative means of 

processing Medical Waste. 
 
 
OBJECTIVE:    The objective of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan is to 
develop a system that addresses the identification, selection, handling, storage, use and 
disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. 
 
 
GOALS:  
A. The goals of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan include the following: 

30/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 2 of 7 

A.1. To provide education to personnel on the elements of the Hazardous Materials and 
Waste Management Program. 

A.2. To identify, evaluate and inventory hazardous materials and waste generated or used 
consistent with applicable regulations and laws; 

A.3. To establish emergency procedures to use during hazardous materials and waste 
spills or exposures. 

 
 
RESPONSIBILITY:     The Laboratory Manager and members of the subcommittee are 
responsible for developing and assessing the Hazardous Materials and waste Management 
Program.   
 
 
PROCEDURE:   
A. Hazardous Materials and Waste Selecting, Handling, Storing, Transporting, Using and 

Disposing from Receipt or Generation through Use or Final Disposal:  
A.1. A system of products and forms has been developed that addresses the identification 

of hazardous materials and waste from selection to the point of final disposal.  
Policies and procedures related to various hazardous materials and wastes are 
reviewed, revised and approved by the Pharmacy, Haz-Mat Sub-Committee and 
EOC. 

A.2. The department managers will review the use of hazardous materials in their 
departments.  Recommendations should be taken to the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee. 

A.3. In an effort to reduce the use of hazardous materials, the department managers shall 
review literature referencing the reduction of toxic materials and make 
recommendations regarding less hazardous products to the Haz-Mat Sub-
Committee. 

 
B. Written Criteria is Established Which is Consistent with Local, State and Federal Law to 

Identify, Evaluate and Inventory Hazardous Materials Used or Generated per our 
Hazardous Communication Policy:  Hazardous Chemical Communication Program  
B.1. Bartlett Regional Hospital will keep a list of materials classified by state and federal 

standards, i.e., OSHA, EPA, as being hazardous material or waste.  The list will be 
kept on the network under MSDSonline. 

B.2. Each department will be responsible for identifying and labeling all hazardous 
materials and waste within their department/area.   

B.3. A SDS is to be obtained for every hazardous chemical used in the hospital.  A 
master file of all known Safety Data Sheets is available on-line via Internet access 
under favorites. 
B.3.1. Each department manager is responsible for ensuring the current SDS is in 

the system. 
B.3.2    A Safety Data Sheet supplies you with detailed information on a chemical 

and its hazards.   
 
C. The Management of Chemical Waste, Chemotherapeutic Waste, Radioactive Waste and 

Regulated Medical Waste (i.e., Sharps):  

31/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 3 of 7 

C.1. Policies and procedures relating to chemical and physical hazards shall be reviewed 
by the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee, EOC Committee and the Infection Control 
Committee for infectious hazards on an annual basis. 

C.2. All antineoplastic drugs shall be handled with special precautions according to 
instructions from the manufacturer.  All waste from antineoplastic drugs must be 
disposed of as hazardous waste in leak-proof, puncture-proof and appropriately 
marked containers specified for such.  All antineoplastic drugs identified as 
hazardous by the US Environmental Protection Agency/Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act (USEPA/RCRA) standards will be handled according to standards set 
forth by USEPA/RCRA, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
standards, the Hazard Communication Standard, the Occupational Exposure to 
Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories Standard and OSHA’s Controlling 
Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Drugs guidelines. 

C.3. All radioactive materials are disposed of in accordance with the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission Regulations.   

C.4. All sharps, including hypodermic needles and syringes, suture needles, knife blades, 
trocars from drains and opened glass ampoules of medicine will be disposed of into 
puncture-proof sharps containers. 

 
D. Adequate and Appropriate Space and Equipment is Provided for the Safe Handling and 

Storing of Hazardous Materials and Waste: 
D.1. All hazardous materials are received in the department by appropriate personnel 

and stored in a designated supply closet for chemicals only.  Chemicals are properly 
labeled with a description of the hazard they represent. 

D.2. Materials which ignite easily under normal conditions (flammable), are considered 
fire hazards and will be stored in a cool, dry, well-ventilated storage space, away 
from areas of fire hazard. 

D.3. Highly flammable materials will be kept in a flammable safety cabinet and in areas 
separate from oxidizing agents (material susceptible to spontaneous heating, 
explosives, etc.). 

D.4. The storage area for flammables will be supplied with fire-fighting equipment, either 
automatic or manual.  There will be "flammable material" signs posted in and around 
the storage area. 

D.5. Oxidizers will not be stored close to liquids of low flash point. 
D.6. Acids and acid-fume-sensitive materials will be stored in a cool dry, well-ventilated 

area, preferably wooden. 
D.7. Materials which are toxic as stored or which can decompose into toxic components 

from contact with heat, moisture, acids or acid fumes will be stored in a cool, well-
ventilated place out of the direct rays of the sun.  Incompatible toxic materials will be 
isolated from each other. 

D.8. Corrosive materials will be stored in a cool, well-ventilated area (above their freeze 
point).  The containers will be inspected at regular intervals to ensure they are 
labeled and kept closed.  Corrosives will be isolated from other materials. 

D.9. Personal protective clothing and equipment will be available for use when handling 
these materials.  Staff are trained in the appropriate use of personal protective 
clothing and equipment by their department manager. 

D.10.  When performing a task where the eyes or body of a person may be exposed to 
injurious corrosive material, such as transferring containers of concentrated agents, 

32/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 4 of 7 

the individual will first make sure they are within immediate proximity (10 seconds) to 
an emergency eyewash station and/or shower.  

 
E. Hazardous Gas and Vapors Monitoring and Disposing:  

E.1. Cylinder trucks and supports and cylinder valve protection caps will be used.  All full 
cylinder storage areas shall be protected from extremes of heat and cold and from 
access by unauthorized individuals. 

E.2. Regular visual inspections of compressed gas cylinders are performed to ensure 
cylinders are in safe condition. 

E.3. All pressure relief safety devices meet the Compressed Gas Association (CGA) 
requirements. 

E.4. Oxygen cylinders must be stored a minimum of 20 feet apart from fuel-gas cylinders 
or stored combustible materials. 

E.5. Oxygen equipment must not come in contact with any form of grease or oil. 
E.6. Areas using formaldehyde will be identified and monitored according to federal and 

state law. 
 
F. All Hazardous Materials or Waste Spills, Exposures and Other Incidents are Reported and 

Investigated:    
F.1. An occurrence report will be completed on all hazardous materials and waste spills 

and exposures.  The department managers shall investigate all hazardous 
materials and waste spills and exposure.  Occurrence reports are continuously 
monitored reviewed and studied by the Risk Manager to determine the cause of the 
incident and if follow-up is needed by department managers.  The Risk Manager 
will provide any reports of all hazardous materials occurrences to the Haz-Mat Sub-
Committee. 

F.2. Emergency response is performed as described by implemented Haz Mat 
procedures and use of Code Orange by staff 

F.3. Hazardous Material committee members created Relias training to assure staff 
understands processes as part of emergency response.  

 
G. Permits, Licenses and Adherence to Other Regulations are Maintained: 

G.1. Hazardous waste generation will be tracked, controlled and managed according to 
OSHA, DOT, EPA, state, CBJ regulations. 

G.3. Biohazard waste generated by the hospital is processed through the Sanipak 
system.  All other items, identifiable body parts, liquids and radioactive and 
cytotoxic waste will be dealt with as appropriate in accordance with state and 
federal laws. 

 
H. Required Manifests for Hazardous Materials and Waste are Maintained:    

H.1. A component of the management and disposition of hazardous wastes is the 
removal of these materials from the point of generation to a specified treatment, 
storage or disposal facility. 

H.2. Records will be maintained identifying the generator, quantity, type and disposal 
action of the hazardous material or waste.   
H.1.1. A signature is required from the generating facility on each tracking record 

at the time of pick-up.  

33/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 5 of 7 

H.1.2. A signature deems that the waste is compliant and packaged correctly 
according to regulations. 

H.3. Hazardous waste manifests will be maintained by the Facilities Manager.  The 
Facilities Manager is also responsible for maintaining all documents, including 
tracking records, shipping documents and the certificate of treatment or disposal for 
all hazardous materials removed from the facility. 

 
I. Hazardous Materials and Waste are Properly Labeled per the Hazardous Communication 

Program:  
I.1. Containers of hazardous chemicals must be labeled by the chemical manufacturer, 

importer or distributor with the following information prior to leaving the workplace: 
I.1.2. Identity of the hazardous chemical(s) as it appears on the SDS and 

chemical list found on the network under MSDS online. 
I.1.3. Name and address of the chemical manufacturer, importer or other 

responsible party 
I.2. Labels must be , legible and prominently displayed on the container.  Labeling 

should be per NFPA, OSHA’s Blood borne Pathogens or by Hazardous 
Communication standards 

I.3.  Labels and other forms of warnings are legible. 
 
 
 
J. Hazardous Materials and Waste Storage and Processing Areas are Separated from Other 

Areas of the Facility:   
J.1. All medical and hazardous waste will be segregated and contained separately from 

other waste at the point of generation.  The department manager is responsible for 
ensuring there is appropriate separation and the waste is placed in properly 
constructed and labeled containers. 

J.2. Trained Environmental Services (EVS) staff will utilize red rigid containers to 
transport biohazard waste bags from the various hospital departments.  All 
containers will be labeled with the universal biohazard symbol.  EVS staff will wear 
the appropriate personal protective equipment when handling and transporting 
biohazard waste. 

J.3. Biohazard wastes will be stored in a designated locked and secured holding area 
for final disposal.  Warning signs will be posted. Disposal of Hazardous Material is 
accomplished by transport to CBJ Hazardous Waste Depot by the Maintenance 
department. 

J.4. Medical waste holding areas will be inspected routinely by the EVS Manager.  Any 
deficiencies found will be dealt with promptly.  

 
K. An Orientation and Education Program for Employees who Manage or Have Contact with 

Hazardous Materials and Wastes is in Place:    
K.1. All persons required to manage or handle hazardous chemicals, materials or waste 

will be provided with appropriate orientation, personal protective equipment and job 
training.  Each department is responsible for training each individual handling 
hazardous materials and waste.  Employee orientation and education shall include 
the following: 
K.1.1. Information about the hazard communication program 

34/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 6 of 7 

 
 K.1.2. Identification of the hazardous materials in their workplace and the health hazards 

associated with handling these materials   
L. Performance Standards: 

L.1. EOC Committee will establish and prioritize performance measures. 
L.1.1. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be 

presented to the EOC Committee by the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee at least 
on a quarterly basis. 

L.2. Performance Measures: 
L.2.1. Risk Management will maintain a record of all Hazardous Materials spills or 

fumes and determine the cause.  Department Managers will report findings 
to Quality Review, who will report to the EOC.  This is done by occurrence 
system for the hospital 

L.2.2. Bio-Medical Technician will delegate the effectiveness of vent hoods 
throughout the hospital for proper gas/vapor removal, and report findings to 
the EOC.  Testing is done by outside vendor.  Departments with hoods 
maintain proof of inspections/maintenance records. 

 
 
M. Annual Evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan’s Objectives, 

Scope, Performance and Effectiveness:   
M.1. The annual evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management 

Program will include a review of the scope according to the current Joint 
Commission (TJC) standards to evaluate the degree in which the program meets 
accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the hospital.  A 
comparison of the expectations and actual results of the program will be evaluated 
to determine if the goals and objectives of the program were met.  The overall 
performance of the program will be reviewed by evaluating the results of 
performance improvement outcomes.  Each year the overall effectiveness of the 
program will be evaluated by review of the plans, objectives, scope, performance 
and effectiveness. 
M.1.1. The performance and effectiveness of the Hazardous Materials and Waste 

   Management Program shall be reviewed by the EOC Committee.  
M.2. Changes in the plan will be forwarded to the EOC Committee for approval. 
M.3. See Annual Evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management 

Plan/Program. 
 
 
REFERENCES:  

NIOSH “Preventing Occupational Exposures to Antineoplastic and Other Hazardous Drugs 
in Healthcare Settings”, March 2016. 

 
OSHA standards:  Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200);  
Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories (29 CFR 1910.1450) 
 
OSHA technical manual guidelines “Controlling Occupational Exposure to Hazardous 
Drugs” 
 

35/79



 
 
 
 

 
8360.055 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN           Page 7 of 7 

Hazardous Chemical Communication Program  
 

36/79



Page 1 of 3 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE 
Safety Management Plan 

January 1 – December 31, 2022 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Safety Management Plan objectives to ensure that they represent the organizations most 
important concerns. Please list any new objectives or confirm that the current objectives still apply and no 
changes are recommended. 
 

A. Identify opportunities to improve safety performance 
B. Provide regular safety education to all staff 
C. Enforce current safety practices for staff, patients, physicians, and visitors 
D. Comply with all relevant safety standards and regulations 
E. Monitor the effectiveness of the safety plan 

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the Safety Management Plan’s purpose and scope to assure it remains appropriate for the current 
structure of the organization. Please list any recommended changes to the purpose or scope or confirm 
that the current purpose and scope is still appropriate and no changes are recommended. 
 
Purpose and Scope still appropriate, no changes recommended. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
List the performance measures used and their outcomes to evaluate the Safety Management Plan’s 
performance. Set new or higher goals for the upcoming year. Use the evaluation of the Safety 
Management Plan’s effectiveness section to aid in the development of the new performance measures. 

Performance Measures for 2022 Goals/ 
Benchmark 

OUTCOME 

Recruit and retain frontline worker for the workforce safety 
and security committee to meet OSHA standards. 

3 new 
members 

Safety and Security Committee 0 
Workplace Violence 15 

 

Reduce OSHA recordable injuries to staff by 30% in 2022 
(14 for 2021) 

10 or less 14 Injuries, all Bloodborne Pathogen 
Exposures 

11 of them Sharps Exposures 
No other injuries 

Conduct a Risk Assessment on at least one high risk 
process area per year.   

1 FMEA 
completed 

3 

Complete a ligature risk assessment and mitigation of 
ligature risks on MHU.  This will include any identified 
concerns from 2021 survey. 

Project 100% 
Complete 

90% 

Update and complete the workplace violence prevention 
plan and implement tracking and review standards within 
the plan to meet OSHA and Joint Commission standards. 

Project 100% 
Complete 

75% 

37/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Safety Management Plan (continued) 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Evaluate the effectiveness of the Safety Management Plan considering what went well, what has been 
accomplished and what needs improvement. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
What went well?  
 

• Autumn completed Ligature Risk Assessment, implemented changes, now at 90% completion 
with a scheduled completion by end of year.  

• Met Benchmark in 2 areas, third area scheduled to be met prior to year end. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
What has been accomplished? 
 

• Hiring of the Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager 
• Formation of the Workplace Violence Committee 
• Policy and procedures for Silent Code Grey alerts updated and implemented 

New Performance Measures for 2023 Goals/ 
Benchmark 

OUTCOME 

Reduce OSHA recordable injuries to staff by 30% in 2023 
(14 for 2022) 

10 or less injuries 
for 2023 

 

Implement Tracking/Dashboard for Workplace Violence (WPV) End of Q2  

Finalize and implement new Patient Visitor Policy (Weapons, Drugs, and 
Conduct) 

July 2023  

Monthly Reporting of Employee Safety to the Board Begin Q3 2023  

Reduce Incidents of Sharps Exposures to be at or below the National 
Benchmark for 2021 (30 per 100 Patient Beds) (2022 Bartlett Rate 
49.88) 

30 incidents per 
100 patient beds 

 

Add Dashboard for Needlesticks and Workplace Violence to the Daily 
Safety Huddle 

June 2023  

Performance Improvement Project: Safe Sharps Solutions 
Conduct a survey on Sharps Device Usage at all locations. Review 
survey with Product Selection Committee for any potential 
improvements in safety. Implement changes, gather data, and 
reevaluate for next year. Combine with the Centers for Disease Control 
“Stop Sticks Campaign”. 

Survey Q1 
Review Q2 

Implement Q3 
Evaluate Q4 

 

38/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Safety Management Plan (continued) 
 

Page 3 of 3 

• TEAM de-escalation training extended to the PFS and PAS areas 
• Denise streamlined the policy for Occupational Exposure to Bloodborne Pathogens, making it 

easier and reducing burden on the Emergency Department  
• Virtual Sitter Program contract signed, ready for implementation in CY 2023 
• AKOSH Informal Settlement Agreement fulfilled 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
What needs improvement? Include performance improvement ideas to be discussed and implemented. 
 

• Development of Tracking and evaluation of workplace violence incidents and review of post 
event interventions.  

• Need to determine what will reduce our Needlestick/Bloodborne Pathogen Exposures 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance improvement projects initiated in response to the evaluation: 
 

• Safe Sharps Solutions 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report presented to Environment of Care Committee:             Date:  _____ 
 
Report completed by: Evan Price  Date:  11/23/2022 
 
Notes: 
 

39/79



 

 
PURPOSE 
Bartlett Regional Hospital’s (BRH) commitment to a safety management plan is designed to 
provide a physical environment free of hazards. To manage staff activities to minimize the 
risk of human injury.  It shall ensure that personnel are trained to interact effectively in their 
environment and with the equipment they use.  All elements of the Environment of Care 
(EOC) are incorporated or serve to support the BRH Safety Management Plan. 
 
SCOPE 
This comprehensive safety management plan will incorporate an interactive process involving 
and affecting all of Bartlett Regional Hospital’s employees, contractors, patients, and visitors. 
The plan provides processes for: 

A. Developing and maintaining a written management plan that describes processes 
implemented to effectively manage the environmental safety of patients, staff and 
other people coming to BRH. 

B. Identifying an individual(s) designated by leadership to manage risk, coordinate risk 
reduction activities in the physical environment, collect deficiency information, and 
disseminates summaries of actions and results. 

C. Identifying an individual(s) to intervene whenever environmental conditions 
immediately threaten life or health or threaten damage to equipment or buildings. 

D. Conducting a proactive risk assessment that evaluates the potential adverse 
impact to buildings, grounds, equipment, occupants, and internal physical systems 
on the safety and health of patients, staff and other people coming to BRH facilities. 

E. Identifying risks to select and implement procedures and controls to achieve the 
lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and health of patients, staff and 
other people coming to BRH facilities. 

F. Establishing safety policies and procedures that are distributed, practiced, 
enforced, and reviewed as frequently as necessary, but at least every three years. 

G. Ensuring appropriate responses to product notices and safety recalls. 
H. Ensuring that all grounds and equipment are maintained appropriately. 
I. Conducting environmental tours to identify environmental deficiencies, hazards, 

and unsafe practices. 
J. Environmental tours are conducted at least every six months in all patient care 

areas and at least annually in all non-patient areas to evaluate the effectiveness of 
previously implemented activities intended to minimize or eliminate Environment of 
Care (EOC) risks. 

K. Adhere to the City and Borough Tobacco Ordinance 2007-20 and implements a 
process for monitoring compliance within the hospital and developed strategies to 
eliminate the incidence of tobacco use policy violations when identified. BRH 
encourages patients who do smoke to quit and provides education including 
information about smoking cessation options.  BRH is a “Tobacco Free Campus. 
The hospital policy prohibits tobacco use in all buildings and on its campus. 

L. Utilizing internal sources, such as ongoing monitoring of the environment, results of 

 

Title: SAFETY MANAGEMENT PLAN  

 

  

40/79



root cause analyses, results of annual proactive risk assessments of high-risk 
processes, and from credible external sources such as Sentinel Event Alerts. 

M. Selecting one high risk process at least every 18 months and complete a proactive 
risk assessment (LD.03.09.01 EP # 7). 

N. The hospital identifies activities to minimize or eliminate the risk of worker injuries.  
 
OBJECTIVES 

A. Identify opportunities to improve safety performance 
B. Provide regular safety education to all staff 
C. Enforce current safety practices for staff, patients, physicians, and visitors 
D. Comply with all relevant safety standards and regulations 
E. Monitor the effectiveness of the safety plan 

 
ELEMENTS OF PERFORMANCE:  
EC.01.01.01 The hospital plans activities to minimize risks in the environment of care.   
Note: One or more persons can be assigned to manage risks associated with the 
management plans described in this standard.    
EP 1 Leaders identify an individual(s) to manage risk, coordinate risk reduction 
activities in the physical environment, collect deficiency information, and 
disseminate summaries of actions and results. Note:  Deficiencies include injuries, 
problems or use errors.  

BRH appoints a Safety & Security Committee, and a Patient Safety Committee to be 
responsible for developing, implementing, monitoring, administering and directing an 
ongoing, organization-wide process to collect information about opportunities for 
improvement in the BRH Safety Management Plan. The Chief Executive Officer appoints 
an Employee Safety Officer and a Patient Safety Officer to have the authority and duty to 
take immediate and appropriate action in the event that a hazardous condition exist 
which poses threat of life, personal injury illness, or the threat of damage to property. 

 
The Safety & Security Committee and the Patient Safety Committee (a multidisciplinary 
team composed of representatives of Administration, Quality, Risk Management, Clinical 
Services, Support Services, Infection Prevention, Facilities, Patient Safety Officer and the 
BRH Employee Safety Officer) examines and addresses all safety and health issues to 
ensure these issues are analyzed and addressed in a timely manner.  
 
The Board Quality Council receives reports of the activities of the Safety Management 
Plan, reviews reports, and communicates concerns about identified issues and regulatory 
compliance.   
 
The Joint Commission places the responsibility for ensuring a safe environment on 
Senior Management. The CEO receives regular reports of the activities of the Safety 
Management Plan through EOC.  The CEO may delegate these functions to another 
member of the Senior Management team.  The designee shall report to the CEO on all 
safety issues. 

 
 
 
EC.02.01.01 The hospital manages safety and security risks. 
 EP 1 The hospital implements its process to identify safety and security risks associated with 
the environment of care that could affect patients, staff, and other people coming to the 
hospital’s facilities. Note: Risks are identified from internal sources such as ongoing 
monitoring of the environment, results of root cause analyses, results of proactive risk 

41/79



assessments of high-risk processes, and from credible external sources such as Sentinel 
Event Alerts. 

BRH Safety and Security Patrols provide comprehensive proactive risk assessments 
and any occurrences are reported to Risk Management.  This is designed to proactively 
evaluate the impact on patient care, and visitors as it relates to the safety of the 
buildings, grounds, internal physical systems and the safe practices of hospital 
employees. 

 
The ongoing monitoring of performance regarding actual or potential risks in the 
environment of care is identified and communicated to the organization’s leaders at 
least annually for consideration and possible inclusion in the Hospital’s priority for 
improvements. 
1. Through a multi-disciplinary approach, all hospital personnel participates in creating 

an environment and culture of safety. 
2. Risk management policies and procedures on adverse incidents/occurrences and 

sentinel events are reviewed/revised annually to reflect changing and emerging 
trends related to patient and environmental safety. 

 

EP 5: The hospital maintains all grounds and equipment.  
The Facilities Director/designee is responsible for supervising the activities of the ground’s 
maintenance crew.  The ground’s maintenance crew will maintain the property and 
equipment according to the expectations of the hospital. 
 

EP 11: The hospital responds to product notices and recalls. 

All product safety alerts, hazard notices and recalls will be directed to the appropriate 
Department Director. The Biomedical staff or /designee will check the clinical equipment 
inventory for equipment matches and evaluate the severity of the risk. In most cases, the 
notices will be addressed without removing equipment from service.  In the event equipment 
must be removed from service, the equipment is replaced with a safe effective substitute.  
The Facilities Director, Biomedical staff or designee will impound equipment removed from 
use due to recall notices until it can be rendered safe.   Hazard notices, recalls and follow up 
will be reported monthly to the Environment of Care Committee.  
 
EP 17: The hospital conducts an annual worksite analysis related to its workplace violence 
prevention program. 
The hospital takes actions to mitigate or resolve the workplace violence safety and security 
risks based upon findings from the analysis. Note: A worksite analysis includes a proactive 
analysis of the worksite, an investigation of the hospital’s workplace violence incidents, and 
an analysis of how the program’s policies and procedures, training, education, and 
environmental design reflect best practices and conform to applicable laws and regulations.  
 

 
EC.02.01.03 The hospital prohibits smoking except in specific circumstances. 
EP 6: The hospital takes action to maintain compliance with its smoking policy. 
Patients, visitors and employees are reminded of the Tobacco Free Campus policy.  All 
employees are requested to inform violators of the tobacco use policy.  If there is resistance 
or the patient or visitor refuses to comply, the Security Officer/designee may be asked to 
intervene and escort the visitor from the building or the patient’s admitting physician will be 
contacted and asked to resolve the situation or discharge the patient.  If an employee is 
found smoking their direct supervisor will be notified and disciplinary action will be taken, if it 

42/79



is a contractor, they will be asked to leave the facility. 
 
 
 
EC.04.01.01 The hospital collects information to monitor conditions in the 
environment. 
EP 15: Every 12 months, the hospital evaluates each environment of care management plan, 
including a review of the plan’s objectives, scope, performance, and effectiveness. 
 
The annual evaluation of the Safety Management Plan will include a review of the scope 
according to the current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the degree in which the plan 
meets accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the hospital. A comparison 
of the expectations and actual results of the plan will be evaluated to determine if the goals 
and objectives of the plan were met. 
 
The performance and effectiveness of the Environment of Care Management Plan shall be 
reviewed by the Environment of Care Committee and the Board Quality Council and 
Administration. 
 
In addition, members of the Safety & Security Committee will conduct environmental tours to 
identify environmental issues, hazards and unsafe practices.  Data will be aggregated and 
reported back to the Safety & Security Committee.  Deficiencies will be reported to the 
department director and returned back to the Safety Committee completed. 
 
EC.04.01.03 The hospital analyzes identified environment of care issues. 

EP2 The hospital uses the results of data analysis to identify opportunities to resolve 

environmental safety issues.  

BRH’s Environment of Care Committee includes representatives from clinical, administrative, 
and support services who participate in the analysis of environment of care data on an annual 
basis. 
 
The hospital uses the risks identified to select and implement procedures and controls to 
achieve the lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and health of patients, staff, and 
other people coming to the hospital facilities. 
 
Results of incident reporting aggregated data is reported by the Risk Manager through the 
appropriate hospital committees with recommendations for process/systems improvement. 
 
Based on outcome, implementation of performance improvements are monitored by the Risk 
Manager for sustained process/systems improvement and results are reported for tracking 
and trending. 
 
Through a proactive Risk Management Plan, risk exposure assessment of loss, control and 
risk reduction activities are identified through the internal incident reporting system.  A 
corrective action plan is implemented with interventions, monitoring and evaluation for 
performance improvements which are addressed by the leadership, medical and hospital 
staff.   
 
LD.04.01.07 The hospital has policies and procedures that guide and support patient 

43/79



care, treatment and services. 
EP 1: Leaders review, approve, and manage the implementation of policies and procedures 
that guide and support patient care, treatment, and services. 
 
The Safety & Security Committee will develop, or review written policies and procedures to 
enhance safety within the hospital and its grounds.  Departments may maintain individualized 
safety procedures as needed.  All safety policies will be reviewed as necessary, and 
periodically no less than every three years.  Material revisions or changes will be reviewed by 
the Safety & Security Committee, and the Policy Committee.  
The ultimate responsibility for development and maintenance of current department specific 
safety procedures shall lie with the document owner with the assistance of the department 
director and Safety & Security Committee as appropriate. 
 
 
REFERENCE: BRH P&P "Tobacco Screening Inpatient Treatment and Referral." (Published 
policy resided in the Respiratory Department); 2013 HAS, January (EC1-EC28). 
 
Joint Commission Hospital Accreditation Standards.  Accessed online January 2022 at 
https://e-dition.jcrinc.com. The Joint Commission, January 1, 2022. Environment of Care, 
Human Resources and Leadership Standards. 

44/79



Page 1 of 5 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF  
THE UTILITIES MANAGEMENT PROGRAM November 2021 – October 2022 

Evaluate the Utilities Management Plan “objectives” to ensure they represent the organizations 
most important concerns.  Please list any new objectives or confirm that the current objectives 
apply. 

No Changes Recommended 

Evaluate the Utilities Management Plan definition of “scope” to assure it remains appropriate for 
the current structure of the organization.  Please list any recommended changes to the scope or 
confirm that the current scope is still appropriate 

No Changes Recommended 

List the performance measures used and their outcomes to evaluate the plan's “performance”. Set 
new or higher goals for the upcoming year.  Use the evaluation of the plan's “effectiveness” 
section to aid in the development of the new performance measures. 

Performance Measures 2020-2021 Goals/ 
Benchmark Outcome 

Review and rewrite preventative maintenance procedures. 
Make certain all utility equipment has an asset number assigned with a PM 
schedule in the Electronic Equipment Management Program (TMS).  This 
was to be a multi-year project to review and rewrite all inventories.  (Through 
experience, we learned that reviewing all assets with their preventative 
maintenance procedures was a loftier goal than possible to achieve in a 
single year.  This year writing procedures for all new assets added to the 
program was our focus.  This goal may have been overstated because not 
all assets are required or should be included in the program. The 
Maintenance Supervisor asses each utility and assigns it a risk number. 
This will identify only those assets that meets the criteria to be included in 
the Utility Systems Management Program.  There are always preventative 
maintenance assets added as Bartlett acquires new properties.  

90% 90% 

Create and maintain an inventory control program in TMS 
year 2022 

We have divided this project into smaller sections. 

Section 1.  Sort and condense inventory into a smaller footprint. 
This included not only the main stockroom but also removing items 
formerly housed in the basement of the old Bartlett Outpatient 
Services building (BOPS). We have moved and organized inventory 
into the refrigeration container located next to Bartlett House.  Last 
year we completed 50% of step 1.  We look forward to completing 
100% as of November 2022. 

Section 2.  Quantify each item with manufacturer description and 
stock numbers.  This will include placing each item into a known 
“warehouse” and known “bin location”.  We have purchased 
supporting hardware to begin making location and UPC labels.  We 
are working toward completing 50% of Section 2 by November 
2023.  We have made good progress and have achieved 25% by 
November 2022. 

Goal Percent 
of the overall 

project 

Nov 2022 

100% 

Nov 2022 

25% 

100% 

25% 

45/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Utilities Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Document and report all utility failures during the year 2022 
The Maintenance Department has weekly meetings to monitor 
and investigate all utility system problems, failures, or user 
errors.  We learn from each occurrence in order to minimize 
reoccurrence of failures or errors.  We identify and document 
all new utility failures weekly.  This year we identified and 
documented 100% of the failures this year. 

Goals/ 
Benchmark 
 
100% 

Outcome 
 
 
100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New or Continuing Performance Measures 2022-2023 Goals/ 
Benchmark 

Continuing: Create and maintain an inventory control program in 
TMS for the Maintenance Department.  For all parts: reducing the 
number of unusable stock as well as maintaining adequate supply to 
perform necessary tasks.  This has been a multi-year project.  Last 
year we remodeled the storeroom: walls painted, floor floated and 
painted, and new racks and shelving installed.  This year we were 
able to organize stock and reduce the amount of unused and outdated 
inventory. 

We have divided this project into smaller sections. 

Section 2.  Quantify each item with manufacturer description 
and stock numbers.  This will include placing each item into a 
known “warehouse” and known “bin location”.  We have 
purchased supporting hardware to begin making location and 
UPC labels.  We are working toward completing 50% of 
Section 2 by November 2023. 

Section 3.  Enter inventory into the TMS system, learn how to 
add and remove supplies, and assign their use to an individual 
work order with replacement pricing.  This process will allow us 
to monitor minimum inventory stock levels.  We are 
anticipating this to be completed by November 2024. 

See comparative photos contained in this report. 

Percent of the 
overall project 

 

 

 

 

 

Nov 23 

50% 

_________ 

 

Nov 24 

100% 

 

 
Scan historical blueprints into electronic format 

Continue to scan historical blueprints into electronic format: this 
is preserving the condition of the information and make it more 
accessible.  Our goal is to preserve 90% of the prints 
electronically. 

 

 

90% 

46/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Utilities Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 3 of 5 

Relabel Circuit Breaker Boxes 

All Circuit Breaker boxes need to be investigated and relabeled 
to clarify the devices that are protected by each enclosure.  We 
will identify the breaker boxes that are most in need of attention.  
It is reasonable to perform this task at the rate of 2 panels per 
month. 

 

 

 

2 per month 

24 per year 

 
What went well? 

We have begun to implement the TMS Inventory Process for what items have been entered and 
are discovering its advantage. We have been using a casual employee to do much of this work.  
Continued progress stops when they run out of casual hours. 
 
We continue to scan historical blueprints into electronic format: this is preserving the condition of 
the information and make it more accessible.  To date, there have been 82 digital blueprint sets 
entered into the files. 
 
We have continued to organize and purge obsolete parts and equipment not needed in the 
Maintenance Department. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              Maintenance Storeroom in 2020                        
Maintenance Storeroom at time of last report 11/2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Utilities Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 
Storeroom shelves labeled with location address 2022                        Bin with description and scan bar 2022. 

 

                            Circuit Breaker boxes need to be investigated and relabeled 

________________________________________________________________ 

What has been accomplished In the Facilities/Maintenance Department 

 Repaired a long existing Oxygen leak in the distribution room.  Repaired a long existing 
Medical Air leak in the compressor room.  Both required a system shutdown to accomplish. 

 Had installed 3 Phase Transtector Surge Suppression System through the hospital 
campus. 

 Had installed new exterior lighting including new lights in the parking lots. 
 Installed Satellite Television systems in Hospital and Bartlett House.  
 Replaced many Fire Doors that would not pass inspections 
 Corrected sewer discharge slop for RRC. 
 Made significant repair to fire barrier walls. 
 Received training for ADEC Underground Fuel Tank and began required record keeping. 
 Replace old fuel oil tank with new smaller size at Bartlett House 
 Removed the very large air compressor system remaining from the Hyperbaric tank unit in 

the basement of the Administration building. 
 Replaced forced air furnace in JMC after the fire box did not pass inspection. 
 Removed a vast amount of disintegrating forced air ducting that had been abandon in place 

at the JMC.  We mapped out the heating ducts and located areas of the building that does 
not have heat. 

 
 
 

48/79



ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE Utilities Management Program (continued) 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 
What needs improvement? Include performance improvement ideas to be discussed and 
implemented. 

 Replace a closed-loop water chiller that has reached end of life. The unit is scheduled to be 
replaced after the new year of 2023. 

 As the Aroura Mental Health Center is completed the Maintenance Department will need to 
move and inventory much of the replacement parts and equipment that is scattered across 
the campus after we vacated the old Bartlett Outpatient Services.  This will take many 
hours with limited man hours. 

 We need to move forward with making repairs and replacement to the fuel oil system for 
the hospital boilers and emergency generator. 

 The Administration Building exterior envelope has failed requiring the vapor barrier and 
select windows to be replaced. 

 All Circuit Breaker boxes need to be investigated and relabeled to clarify the devices that 
are protected by each enclosure. 

 

Performance improvement projects initiated in response to the evaluation: 

 We continue to scan historical blueprints into electronic format. 

 All Circuit Breaker boxes need to be investigated and relabeled to clarify the devices that 
are protected by each enclosure.  We will identify the breaker boxes that are most in need 
of attention.  It is reasonable to perform this task at the rate of 2 panels per month. 

 

  

Report completed by Utilities & Equipment Subcommittee Date  December 2022 

Report presented to Environment of Care Committee Date   

49/79



Utility Systems Management Plan Page 1 of 6 

SCOPE: 
The scope of the Utility Systems Management Plan is to define the processes by which utility 
systems in use at Bartlett Regional Hospital are monitored and maintained.  

POLICY: 
This Policy address the provision for a safe, comfortable patient care and treatment environment, 
by managing the risks associated with operation and the functional reliability of the hospital's utility 
systems. 

OBJECTIVES: 
The objectives of Bartlett Regional Hospital’s Utility Systems Management Plan include the 
following: 
1. To minimize the occurrence of unplanned utility systems failures or interruptions.
2. To provide preventative maintenance of the utility systems ensuring reliability.
3. To monitor and investigate all utility system problems, failures or user errors to learn

from each occurrence in order to minimize reoccurrence of failures or errors.
4. To reduce the potential for organizational-acquired illness.

RESPONSIBILITY: 
The responsibility for maintaining the Utility System resides with the following: 

The Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee is responsible for maintaining the Utility 
Systems Management Plan. 

The Maintenance Supervisor in consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and the 
Facilities Director is responsible for maintaining the Utility Systems Management 
Program. 

A. ASSESS AND MINIMIZE RISKS OF UTILITY FAILURES, REDUCE THE POTENTIAL FOR
ORGANIZATIONAL-ACQUIRED ILLNESS AND ENSURE OPERATIONAL RELIABILITY OF
SYSTEMS:
A.1. The Utility Systems Management Program is designed to assure operational reliability,

reduce the potential for organizational-acquired illness, assess risks, and respond to 
failures and train users and operators of the utility systems components, thus promoting a 
safe, controlled and comfortable environment. 

A.2. There is a comprehensive preventative maintenance program, Total Maintenance System
(TMS) by Accruent, Four Rivers Software Systems, Inc., which includes a written testing 
and maintenance program for all utility components included in the program at established 
intervals.  (See section B2)  It is the responsibility of the Maintenance Supervisor in 
consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and Facilities Director to keep the 
preventative maintenance program accurate and ongoing. 

B. ESTABLISH CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFYING, EVALUATING AND TAKING INVENTORY OF
CRITICAL OPERATING COMPONENTS OF SYSTEMS TO BE INCLUDED IN THE UTILITY
SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT PROGRAM:
B.1. The Utility Systems Management Program shall include equipment that meets the

following criteria: 

Title: Utility Systems Management Plan 
Department: All  

50/79



 
Utility Systems Management Plan          Page 2 of 6 

B.1.1. Equipment that maintains the climatic environment in patient care areas. 
B.1.2. Equipment that constitutes a risk to patient life support upon failure. 
B.1.3. Equipment that is a part of a building system, which is used for infection control. 
B.1.4. Equipment that is part of the communication system, which may affect the patient or 
the patient care environment. 
B.1.5. Equipment that is an auxiliary or ancillary part of a system control or interface to 
patient care environment, life support or infection control. 
 

     B.2. The following systems are included in the Utility Systems Management Program: 
B.2.1. Electrical Distribution System. 
B.2.2. Emergency Power System. 
B.2.3. Vertical and Horizontal Transport (elevators). 
B.2.4. Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning Systems. 
B.2.5. Aerosolizing Water Systems. 
B.2.6. Plumbing and Potable Water Delivery Systems. 
B.2.7. Boilers and Steam Delivery Systems. 
B.2.8. Medical and Surgical Gas Delivery Systems. 
B.2.9. Medical and Surgical Vacuum System. 
B.2.10. Surgical Anesthetic Gas Disposal System. 
B.2.11. Communication Systems. 
B.2.12. Sewage Removal Systems. 
B.2.13. Helipad System 
B.2.14. Fire Alarm and Detection System. 
B.2.15. Fire Sprinkler System 
See DEFINITION OF UTILITY FAILURE 

 
C. INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTAINING OF CRITICAL OPERATING COMPONENTS: 
     C.1. There is a scheduled maintenance system, which is used to schedule, monitor and 

document the inspection, testing and maintenance of each utility system based on the 
manufacturer’s recommendations. 

 
D. INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTAINING OF PIPED MEDICAL GAS SYSTEM: 
     D.1. The Maintenance Supervisor in consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and the 

Facilities Director will develop policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and 
maintenance of the piped medical gas system.  The testing will include master signal 
panels, area alarms, automatic pressure switches, shutoff valves, flexible connectors and 
outlets. 

     D.2. See Policies: Failure of Medical Gas Systems, Definitions of Utility Failure, Emergency 
Medical Gas shut off,  

 
E. PIPED MEDICAL GAS TESTING WHEN SYSTEMS ARE INSTALLED, MODIFIED OR 

REPAIRED: 
     E.1. A qualified person will test all piped medical gas systems when the systems are installed, 

modified, or repaired.  The testing will include cross-connection testing, piping purity 
testing and pressure testing. 

 
F. MANAGEMENT OF PATHOGENIC BIOLOGICAL AGENTS IN DOMESTIC HOT WATER 

AND OTHER AEROSOLIZING WATER SYSTEMS: 
     F.1. The Facilities Director in conjunction with the Infection Control Practitioner will develop 

policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and maintenance of all aerosolizing 
water systems to ensure optimal use of pathogenic biological agents.  

51/79



 
Utility Systems Management Plan          Page 3 of 6 

 
G.  INSTALLATION AND MAINTAINING APPROPRIATE PRESSURE RELATIONSHIPS, AIR 

EXCHANGE RATES AND FILTRATION EFFICIENCIES FOR VENTILATION SYSTEMS 
SERVING AREAS SPECIALLY DESIGNED TO CONTROL AIRBORNE CONTAMINANTS: 

     G.1. To reduce the potential for hospital acquired infections caused by biological agents; 
the Utilities Management Program will include the correct design, installation and 
maintenance of the hospital’s air-handling and ventilation systems.  Areas of the 
facility that treat or house patients who may be autoimmune suppressed include 
operating rooms, special procedure rooms, delivery rooms, protective isolation rooms, 
laboratories and sterile supply rooms. 

 
 The design parameters will follow the American Institute of Architects (AIA) Guidelines 

for Design and Construction of Hospital and Health Care Facilities 2014, Section 2.1-
8.2.1.2  and 3.1-8.2.1.2, 3, “Ventilation Requirement for Areas Affecting Patient Care 
in Hospitals and Outpatient Facilities,” and Table 6.4 page 5 “Minimum Filter 
Efficiencies for Central Ventilation and Air Conditioning Systems in General Hospitals”. 

 
     G.2. The Facilities Director in conjunction with the Infection Control Practitioner will develop 

policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and maintenance of all ventilation 
systems serving areas specially designed to control airborne contaminants such as 
biological agents, gases, fumes and dust.  Areas include, but are not limited to these 
spaces:  
G.2.1. Operating rooms 
G.2.2. Special procedure rooms 
G.2.3. Delivery rooms 
G.2.4. Protective isolation rooms 
G.2.5. Laboratories 
G.2.6. Sterile supply rooms 

     G.3. Bartlett Regional Hospital will follow AIA guidelines for filter efficiencies, air pressure 
relationships, etc. 

 
H. DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN CURRENT UTILITY SYSTEMS OPERATIONAL PLANS 

ENSURING RELIABILITY, MINIMIZING RISKS AND REDUCING FAILURES: 
     H.1. A comprehensive preventative maintenance program, which includes written inspection, 

testing and maintenance programs for all utility components shall help to ensure reliability, 
minimize risks and reduce failures of utility systems.  It is the responsibility of the 
Maintenance Supervisor in consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and 
Facilities Director to keep the preventative maintenance program accurate and ongoing at 
the established intervals.  

 
I. MAPPING DISTRIBUTION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS AND LABELING CONTROLS: 
     I.1. There are illustrations mapping the distribution of utility systems, which indicate the controls 

for partial or complete shutdown of each utility system.  All emergency shutoff controls for 
the utility systems components will be labeled clearly, visibly and permanently throughout 
the facility. 

 
J.  INVESTIGATION AND REPORTING INCIDENTS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS OF UTILITY 

SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT PROBLEMS, FAILURES AND USER ERRORS: 
     J.1. The utility systems incident reporting process is the responsibility of the Maintenance 

Supervisor in consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and the Facilities Director  

52/79



 
Utility Systems Management Plan          Page 4 of 6 

J.2. A Utility Systems Failure Report shall be completed for any problem, failure or user 
error of a vital or essential system.  See DEFINITION OF UTILITY FAILURE 

     J.3. The Maintenance Department will respond to and correct all identified problems within the 
scope of their operations in a timely manner.  Evidence of the actions taken to resolve 
identified problems can be located in the Electronic Equipment Management Program 
(TMS). 

     J.4. The analysis of the utility systems incidents provides an opportunity to identify trends 
and/or patterns to determine if changes in the program may control or prevent future 
occurrences.  The Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee, Chair supplies a summary of 
all utility systems failures to the Environment of Care Committee. 

 
K. UTILITY MANAGEMENT PLAN INCLUDES AN ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION 

PROGRAM: 
     K.1. Department specific orientation and education to the utility systems safety is the 

responsibility of the department Director.  All employees will be trained during general 
orientation and annually thereafter on the process for reporting problems, procedures for 
maintaining essential functions during utility failures, location of emergency shut off 
controls and the procedures to follow if they alarm, procedures to follow in the event of an 
elevator failure and communication equipment protocols.  The training is documented and 
kept in the employee's department personnel file. 

     K.2. Personnel will be required to attend an orientation upon hire and regularly scheduled in-
services that specifically address utility systems capabilities, limitations, special 
applications, emergency procedures if failure occurs, maintenance responsibilities, the 
location and instruction on use of emergency shut off controls and reporting procedures for 
utility systems problems, failures and user errors.  All users/maintainers of equipment shall 
be tested for competency according to the components of their job specifications. 

 
L. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
     L.1. There is a planned, systematic, interdisciplinary approach to process design and 

performance measurement, analysis and improvement related to organization wide safety.  
The Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee will develop and establish performance 
measures and related outcomes, in a collaborative fashion, based on those priority issues 
known to be associated with the healthcare environment.  Performance measures and 
outcomes will be prioritized based upon high risk; high volume, problem prone situations 
and potential or actual sentinel event related occurrences.  Criteria for performance 
improvement measurement and outcome indicator selection will be based on the following: 

     L.2. The measure can identify the events it was intended to identify. 
L.2.1. The measure has a documented numerator and a denominator statement or 

description of the population to which the measure is applicable; 
L.2.2. The measure has defined data elements and allowable values; 
L.2.3. The measure can detect changes in performance over time; 
L.2.4. The data intended for collection are available and results can be reported in a way 

that is useful to the organization and other interested stakeholders. 
     L.3. The Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee on an ongoing basis monitors performance 

regarding actual or potential risk related to one or more of the following: 
L.3.1. Staff knowledge and skills 
L.3.2. Level of staff participation 
L.3.3. Monitoring and inspection activities 
L.3.4. Emergency and incident reporting 
L.3.5. Inspection, preventative maintenance, and testing of safety equipment 

53/79



 
Utility Systems Management Plan          Page 5 of 6 

     L.4. Other performance measures and outcomes will be established by the Utilities and 
Equipment Sub Committee, based on the criterion listed above.  Data sources, frequency 
of data collection, individual(s) responsible for data collection and aggregation and 
reporting will be determined by the Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee.   

L.5. To identify opportunities for improvement, the Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee will 
follow the organization's improvement methodology. 

     L.6. Quarterly, the Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee shall report to the Environment of 
Care Committee the outcome of improvement and activities.  Annually, a report of 
performance outcomes will be presented to the Governing Body. 

     L.7. The following performance measures are recommended: 
L.7.1. Percent of staff able to demonstrate their knowledge and skill of their role and 

expected participation in the Utility Systems Management Program 
L.7.2. Number of utility incident reports 
L.7.3. Number of user errors reported 
L.7.4. Number of utility failures or interrupts 

     L.8. See Hospital Performance Improvement (PI) Committee Charter. 
 
M. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES FOR UTILITY SYSTEMS DISRUPTIONS AND FAILURES: 
     M.1. The Maintenance Supervisor in consultation with the Lead Maintenance Mechanic and 

Facilities Director is responsible for coordinating activities and ensuring procedures are 
developed that specify the action to be taken during the failure of major utility services.  
Emergency procedures include:  
M1.1 Procedures to follow when a utility system malfunctions. 
M1.2 Alternate sources of essential utilities. 
M1.3 Shutoff procedures and controls of malfunctioning system, 
M1.4 Procedures for notifying personnel in the affected areas. 
M1.5 How to obtain repair services. 
M1.6 Procedures to perform emergency clinical interventions. 

     M.2. All clinical department managers are responsible for developing and maintaining 
emergency procedures of the utility systems as it relates to their use and application in 
patient care or treatment areas where a failure, interruption or malfunction could result in 
a negative patient outcome including serious injury or death.  The departmental 
emergency procedures will provide personnel with the essential information needed to 
perform during an emergency.  The emergency procedures will include: 
M.2.1. Alternate sources of utilities or back-up protection provided; 
M.2.2. When alternate sources are not available procedures to follow until the utility 

system can be restored to normal function; 
M.2.3. Location of emergency shutoff controls; 
M.2.4. Conditions in which the utility may be shut off; 
M.2.5. Assign authority to use the shutoff controls; 
M.2.6. How to report a failure or interruption; 
M.2.7. Obtaining emergency repair services; 
M.2.8. Specific information on emergency clinical interventions. 
The written procedures include a call system for summoning essential personnel and 
outside assistance when required. 

     M.3. See Policies: Emergency Management Plan, Vol. 1,  Emergency Management Plan, Vol. 
2,, Maintenance Department Emergency Plan, Failure of Steam Delivery Boilers, Failure of the 
Water Distribution System, Failure of HVAC System, Emergency Generator Failure, and other 
utility specific policies. 

 

54/79



 
Utility Systems Management Plan          Page 6 of 6 

N. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE UTILITY SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT PLAN: 
     N.1. The annual evaluation of the Utility Systems Management Program will include a review of 

the scope according to current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the degree in 
which the program meets accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the 
hospital.  A comparison of the expectations and actual results of the program will be 
evaluated to determine if the goals and objectives of the program were met.  The overall 
performance of the program will be reviewed by evaluating the results of performance 
improvement outcomes.  The overall effectiveness of the program will be evaluated by 
determining the degree that expectations were met. 

     N.2. The performance and effectiveness of the Utility Systems Management Program shall be 
reviewed by the Utilities and Equipment Sub Committee as well as the Environment of 
Care Committee. 

 
     N.3. See Annual Evaluation of the Utilities Management Program. 
 
This Document reviewed in November 2021December 2022, Utility Systems Management... v.9. 

55/79



 

 
Security Management Plan        Environment of Care 8360.804                             Page 1 of 5 

 

Title:   Security Management Plan  

 
PURPOSE: Bartlett Regional Hospital's Security Management Plan is to provide a 
program that shall protect employees, patients and visitors from harm, and define 
the responsibilities, reporting structure and action for maintaining a secure 
environment. This plan includes all facilities and activities directly related to 
Bartlett Regional Hospital.    
 
POLICY: 
A. The goal of the Security Management plan includes the following:  

A.1. To provide education to personnel on the elements of the Security 
Management Plan; 

A.2. To control access to and egress from sensitive areas (see chart below) 
A.3. To reduce the risk of security incidents; 
A.4. To address security concerns of patients, visitors, personnel and 

property. 
 

SCOPE: All 
A. RESPONSIBILITY:  The Lead Security Officer, Facilities Director, Risk 

Manager, Safety Officer and Environment of Care Committee are responsible 
for developing, implementing, monitoring and managing the Security 
Management Plan.   

 
B. Designation of Employees Responsible for Developing, Implementing and 

Monitoring the Security Management Plan: 
B.1. The Facilities Director shall appoint as the Lead Security Officer a 

qualified individual to develop, implement, maintain and monitor the 
Security Management Plan.  This delegated written authority has been 
approved by the Chief Financial Officer and Facilities Director of this 
hospital. 

B.2. See Job Description Lead Security Officer. 
 

C. Security issues which concern patients, visitors, staff and property are 
addressed. 
C.1. Security vulnerability assessment, Security/Safety Swarms and Security 

reports are completed to indicate areas of risk, including security 
vulnerabilities of sensitive areas, security habits of personnel, staff 
knowledge and skill of security management.  An assessment and 
Swarm gives a good indication of future danger and immediate steps 
shall be taken to eliminate the problems. See attached Vulnerability 
Inspection and Safety Swarm reports. 
 

D. All security incidents involving patients, visitors, staff and property are 
reported and investigated. 
D.1. An Occurrence Report is completed on all incidents involving patients, 

visitors, staff or property.  
D.2. A security incident includes, but is not limited to: 

.  D.2.1 Property damage, lost or stolen property,  

56/79



 

 
Security Management Plan        Environment of Care 8360.804                             Page 2 of 5 

 D.2.2 Injuries to staff (i.e., injuries to staff caused by patients during 
assessment and treatment activities),  

 D.2.3. Any criminal activities.   
 

D.3.   An Occurrence Report will be completed by the security officer on-duty 
at the time of the incident. The Security Occurrence Report will be 
reviewed and evaluated by the Lead Security Officer, Facilities Director 
and Risk Manager to determine the cause of the incident. The Facilities 
Director, Risk Manager and Lead Security Officer will make 
recommendations to the Safety Committee to prevent the reoccurrence 
of related incidents. 

D.4.  The Safety and Security Committee shall review security Occurrence 
reports thru the Risk Manager.  The Security Occurrence Report will be 
reviewed and evaluated through the evaluation of the incident, 
conclusions, recommendations and actions taken. 

D.5. All incidents shall be aggregated on a quarterly basis and reported to 
the Safety Committee.  The Safety Committee will track and trend all 
incidents by type to determine if patterns exist.  Once a pattern has 
been identified, a performance improvement project will be developed 
to improve performance. 

  
See Quarterly Report of Incidents and Security Management Plan for additional 

policies, procedures and forms. 
 
E.  All patients, staff and vendors will have appropriate identification. 
E.1. All staff members shall wear hospital picture identification badges 

with blue back ground.  
E.2.    All out-patients and inpatients will wear permanent identification 

bands.  
E.3.    Vendors and contractors will wear appropriate contractor / vendor 

badge which they receive thru the Human resources and/or Reptrax 
system in Materials Management. The badges will have an orange 
background  

E.4.    All personnel shall stop and question any unidentifiable person in 
their area.  Any person, who is not wearing a recognizable hospital 
identification badge or vendor badge, shall be considered a stranger. 

 
F.      Sensitive areas will have controlled access as determined by the Hospital 

Safety and Security Committee  
F.1. A security risk assessment will be completed and those areas 

determined to be sensitive areas will have restricted access to and 
egress from.   

F.2.  All personnel assigned or working in these areas will receive 
orientation and education to the area-specific security practices to be 
utilized. 

 
The following areas have been identified as being of a greater risk for a 
violation of security: 

 
 
 

TIME OF DAY FOR 
HIGHEST RISK 

THEFT/VANDALISM (T) 
PERSONAL HARM (P) 

 
ACCESS 

57/79



 

 
Security Management Plan        Environment of Care 8360.804                             Page 3 of 5 

AREA (D=Day, E=Evening, 
N=Night) 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (C) LIMITED 

Patient Care Areas D, E, N P, C, T No 

PAS (Patient Access 
Services) 

D, E, N T, P, C Yes 

Business Office E, N C, P, T Yes 

Information Systems D, E, N T, C Yes 

HIM (Health Information 
Management) 

 
E, N 

 
C, T 

 
Yes 

Nuclear Medicine E, N T, C Yes 

OB Nursery D, E, N P, C, T Yes 

Pharmacy D, E, N T, P, C Yes 

Clinical Areas 
(Laboratory, Diagnostic 
Imaging, Respiratory 
Therapy, Physical 
Rehab)  
 

D, E, N T, P, C Yes 
 

Surgical Services D,E,N T,P,C Yes 

 
F.1.1. Emergency Care Areas,  
F.1.2. Newborn Nursery, Obstetrics,  
F.1.3. Special Care Units, Pharmacies,  
F.1.4. Behavioral Health Units,  
F.1.5. Medical Records,  
F.1.6. Cashier, 
F.1.7. Outpatient Clinics and Specialty Outpatient Clinics  

(i.e., substance abuse).  
 

 F.3. Access to the emergency department shall be available to medical staff 
through access codes or by the granting of access by ED department staff.  
No access codes shall be shared with patients, families, visitors or non-
hospital persons. 

 
F.4. All employees have the responsibility to secure any unsecured area of the 

Hospital. 
 

F.4.1. Employees have the responsibility to query strangers and request 
Security if needed. 

 
F.4.2. Juneau Police Department (JPD) will be called for bomb threats, 

thefts, assaults, or when threats of personal harm are made by non-
patient persons or at the discretion of the House Supervisor for 
assistance with violent patients. 

 
G. Vehicular access to Emergency Department area is provided. 

G.1. Security will keep the limited Emergency Department parking clear for 
authorized vehicles only.  Security will be on hand for traffic control 
and will attempt to clear Emergency Department parking areas of 
infractions.  

G.2. See Parking Control Policy. 

58/79



 

 
Security Management Plan        Environment of Care 8360.804                             Page 4 of 5 

G.3. Upon request and based on availability, Security Officers shall escort 
personnel to their cars, and/or meet personnel in parking lots after dark 
and escort them to the Hospital. 

 
G.4.  Security Officers may be contacted at any time for safety escort via 

Patient Access Service personnel or by calling the Security Officer’s 
cellphone directly. 

H. An orientation and education program for staff regarding security is in place. 
H.1. Security-related education for all employees will include:  

H.1.1. Reporting security incidents involving patients, personnel, visitors 
and property; 

H.1.2. Emergency procedures to follow in the event of a security 
incident; 

H.1.3. Security measures in place at the facility (i.e., access control, 
CCTV, alarms); 

H.1.4. Infant/Child abduction; 
H.1.5. Identification badges; 
H.1.6. Workplace violence. 

 
I. Performance Standards. 

I.1. The Safety and Security Committee will develop and establish 
performance measures and related outcomes, in a collaborative fashion, 
based on those priority issues known to be associated with the healthcare 
environment.  Performance measures and outcomes will be prioritized 
based upon high risk; high volume, problem-prone situations and 
potential or actual sentinel event-related occurrences.   
 
Criteria for performance improvement measurement and outcome 
indicator selection will be based on the following: 
I.1.2. The measure can identify the events it was intended to identify. 
I.1.3. The measure has a documented numerator and a denominator 

statement or description of the population to which the measure is 
applicable. 

I.1.4. The measure has defined data elements and allowable values. 
I.1.5. The measure can detect changes in performance over time. 
I.1.6. The measure allows for comparison over time within the 

organization or between the organization and other entities. 
I.1.7. The data intended for collections are available. 

 
J. The Safety and Security Committee on an ongoing basis monitors 

performance regarding actual or potential risk related to one or more of the 
following: 
J.1. Staff knowledge’ 
J.2. Level of staff participation; 
J.3. Monitoring and inspection activities; 
J.4. Emergency and incident reporting; 
J.5. Inspection, preventive maintenance and testing of safety equipment. 
J.6. Other performance measures and outcomes will be established by the 

Safety and Security Committee, based on the criterion listed above. Data 
sources, frequency of data collection, individual(s) responsible for data 

59/79



 

 
Security Management Plan        Environment of Care 8360.804                             Page 5 of 5 

collection, aggregation and reporting will be determined by the Safety and 
Security Committee.  

  
K. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be presented 

to the Safety and Security Committee by the lead security officer at least on a 
monthly basis, with a report of performance outcome forwarded to the Safety 
and Security Committee and the Environment of Care Committee annually.   

 
L. Emergency Security Procedures. 

L.1. There are provisions made for the security of the physical plant, property, 
patients, visitors and personnel of Bartlett Regional Hospital during 
disaster situations. 

L.2. Personnel are trained in the actions to be taken in the event of a security 
incident.. 

L.4. Bartlett Regional Hospital shall seek to maintain a cooperative 
relationship with the news media, which balances the public need for 
information with the responsibility to safeguard the patient's right to 
privacy. 
L.4.1. The release of information to the media will be by authorized 

personnel only. 
L.4.2. Additional staff will be assigned from a contracted private security 

company to assist the Security Unit in controlling vehicular and 
foot traffic in the event of a disaster. 

  
M. The Safety and Security Committee shall review the performance and effectiveness 

of the Security Management Program. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Security Vulnerability Checklist and Inspection Report Corrective Actions 
Security Authority 
Safety and Security SWARM 

60/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

Title:  UTILIZATION MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Department/s: All Clinical Departments 

Original Date: 10/1997 

Updated: 12/20221 

Author: Jeannette Lacey, LMSW, ACM 

  
PURPOSE:   
1. The Utilization Management Plan is an organization wide, interdisciplinary approach to 

balancing the quality, cost, and risk concerns in the provision of patient care. 
2. This plan strives to promote appropriate resource utilization and discharge planning in 

accordance with CMS and to maintain high levels of integrity in keeping with the mission 
statement and vision of Bartlett Regional Hospital.   

 
  
DEFINITIONS:   
Milliman Care Guidelines (MCG):  published by MCG Health, uses evidence-based best 
practices and care planning tools across the continuum of care to evaluate medical necessity 
and track length of stay (LOS). 
 
Interqual Level of Care Criteria (IQ):  published by McKesson Health Solutions, uses condition-
specific, general and extended stay subsets to evaluate for medical necessity.  
 
Utilization Management (UM): is evaluation of the medically necessary appropriateness and 
efficiency in the use of healthcare services, resources, procedures and facilities. 
 
Utilization Review (UR): is the process of determining whether all aspects of a patient’s care, 
at every level, are medically necessary and appropriately delivered. 
 
Secondary Review: is a review performed by a physician with the contracted secondary review 
service, Sound Physician Advisory Services, when the IQ or MCG screening criteria suggest a 
different patient status or level of care other than that ordered by the patient’s physician and/or 
for a potential quality concern. 
   
         
Policy 

A. The Board of Directors of Bartlett Regional Hospital has delegated the responsibility for 
the performance of utilization review activities to the Case Managers (CM) with the 
Utilization Review Committee as the oversight committee. 

 
B. The Utilization Management Plan is based on CMS conditions of participation, The Joint 

Commission standards, and Interqual and/or MCG criteria for healthcare utilization and 
seeks to resolve problems that cause or result in either deficient or excessive resource 
utilization.  The plan will be reviewed at least annually by the Utilization Review 
Committee. 
 

61/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 2 of 7 

 

C. The Utilization Management Plan recognizes the authority of KEPRO and the 
assessment and monitoring of review activities performed by KEPRO. 

    
 
 

D. Utilization management and review are integral parts of the Process Improvement Plan 
at BRH and will be under the auspices of the CFO with direct reporting to the Utilization 
Review Committee. 

 
E. Scope of Review: All patients, regardless of payment sources, shall be evaluated to 

ensure that resources are utilized properly. The Case Managers (CM) will be 
responsible for the process of maintaining and monitoring the effective utilization of 
hospital facilities, services, and resources related to inpatients and patients placed in 
observation status.  This shall include, but not be limited to:  

           E.1. Performing admission, concurrent, discharge and retrospective reviews to assess 
for medical necessity 

 
E.2. Identifying the appropriate level of care 

 
E.3. Managing length of stay 
 
E.4. Assessing potential transfers from lateral or higher levels of care 
        
E.5. Managing denials and appeals 

  
E.6. Tracking and monitoring utilization patterns and professional services furnished, 

including drugs and biologicals. 
 
E.7. Identifying available discharge care resources to develop a post-acute care plan 

that is compliant with CMS guidelines.  
 
E.8.Requesting secondary review or Utilization Review Committee involvement as 

necessary.  
 

F. CM will collaborate with physicians to support the utilization management process by: 
 F.1.  Maintaining open lines of communication. 

F.2.  Reviewing admission status based on accepted criteria and CMS rules and 
discussing concerns with the provider.  

F.3.  Reviewing continued stay documentation and identifying possible changes or 
additions to ensure that documentation supports physician intent. 

F.4.  Coordinating care conferences with the physician and treatment team as indicated.  
F.5.  Involving the physician in the discharge planning process.   
F.6. Coordinating physician participation in the appeal process. 

 
 

G. Patients that do not meet inpatient criteria may be placed in observation status by the 
admitting provider if observation criteria are met.  Those patients who do not meet 
criteria for inpatient care or observation services shall be notified by the CM that the 
services are not covered and that the individual or family may be responsible for 

62/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 3 of 7 

 

payment of the services.  The appropriate Hospital Issued Notice of Non 
Coverage(HINN) or Advanced Beneficiary Notification (ABN)will be given to the patient 
or their representative.  

 
H. Utilization Review Committee Composition:  

H.1. Credentialed medical staff, at least 2 of which will be doctors of medicine or 
osteopathy. H.2. Staff from the Case Management (CM) Department 

H.3. Staff from the Health Information Management (HIM) Department 
H.4. Staff from the Quality Department.  
H.5. Reviews may not be conducted by any individual who has a direct financial interest 

in the hospital; or was professionally involved in the care of the patient whose case 
is being reviewed.  

 
I. Utilization Review Committee Functions: The Committee 

I.1. Will meet quarterly 
I.2. Will review 

 i.Outlier cases 
 ii. Denials 
 iii.Compliance with the 2-Midnight Rule 
 iv. Readmissions 

I.3. May make determinations regarding admissions or continued stays. These may be 
made by one physician member if the attending concurs with the determination or 
fails to present their views when offered the opportunity; Determinations must be 
made with two physician members in all other cases. (See policies for CC44 and 
CCW2 for specific processes). 

I.3. Support HIM, CM, and Clinical Documentation Integrity functions as defined in the 
Medical Staff Rules and Regulations and applicable hospital policies. 

I.4. Make recommendations regarding identified utilization or documentation matters. 
I.5. Serve as a liaison to the medical staff regarding issues reviewed by the committee. 
I.6. Provide education and communicate with individual providers when rules or polices 

are not followed. Escalate concerns when recurrent or significant.  
 
 
SCOPE 
Applies to Case Management Coordination for all BRH inpatients and observation patients.  
PROCEDURE:  Utilization Review 

A.   Preadmission certification for outpatient procedures, surgical procedures, specialties 
care and inpatient admissions (if required) will be the responsibility of the provider’s 
office. 

 
B.   Patient Access Services will perform insurance verification and notify the Case 

Management of reviews requested by payers at the time of verification. 
 
C.   Medical Necessity: Hospital inpatient services under Medicare Part A, section1814(a) 

of the Social Security Act requires physician certification of the medical necessity that 
such services be provided on an inpatient basis.  

 
C.1. Registered Nurse Case Manager (RNCM) will determine if medical 

documentation supports medical necessity for admissions and continued stay 

63/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 4 of 7 

 

based on established industry criteria that are intended for use as a guideline in 
conjunction with sound clinical judgment.  

C.2. Admission reviews will be performed within the first business day following 
admission 

C.3.  A secondary review may be initiated if the RNCM is unable to determine medical 
necessity for the admission.  

C.4.  When there are continued utilization management concerns that are not resolved 
with secondary review and communication with the treatment team, the case will 
be referred to the UR Committee for concurrent review with the attending 
provider. 

C.4. Concurrent stay reviews will be based on the attending physician’s reasons and 
plan for continued stay, discharge plans, and other documentation.  Case 
Management will remain in contact with the attending physician, the business 
office and the payer during the hospital stay to resolve questions and to share 
information regarding discharge plans.   

 
 

References 
(1) Medicare Hospital Manual section 230 
(2) CMS Conditions of Participation 482.30 Utilization Review 
(3) CMS Conditions of Participation 412.80 Outlier Cases 
(4) (4) Milliman Care Guidelines:  Inpatient and Surgical Care, General Recovery Care, 25th edition, 2021. 

(5) (5)  InterQual  LOC: Adult/Pediatric;  BH: Adult and Geriatric Psychiatry/Behavioral  Health Service, 

October 2022 release. 

 Miliman Care Guidelines: Inpatient and Surgical Care, General Recovery Care, current 
edition, 2021 

 
 
Attachments 
(1) Health Information Management/Case Management Committee report form templates: 

1. Denied Days Status Report 
2. Outlier Status Report 
3. Utilization Management Report with Medicare Monitoring Summary 

 

 

 

Attachment #1 
Bartlett Regional Hospital  

HIM/UM Denied Days Status Report 

Date:  

 
Visit 
# 

Admission 
Date 

Discharge 
Date 

LOS Admitting 
Diagnosis 

Days 
Auth 

Days 
Denied 

Insurance Status 

         

         

64/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 5 of 7 

 

         

         

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment # 2  

 

Bartlett Regional Hospital 

 

Medicare Outlier Status Report 

 

 
Patient Name Account # Admission 

Date

Discharge 

Date

LOS ELOS Charges Admitting Diagnosis/ 

Procedures

Disposition/

Outlier 

Problem

CM 

Reviewer

Appropriat

e timing of 

D/C 

planning?

What else 

could have 

been done 

differently?

Reason for 

outlier

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment #3  

 

Bartlett Regional Hospital  

Utilization Management Report 

 

 
Denials

Cases Initial Days Days Reversed/obs/in appeal Days Upheld

Total

Aetna

Blue Cross

Medicaid

UHC

MCR Replacement

Other

Case Mix Index (CMI)

Payor CMI

Number of 

inpatients

MCR

MCD 

All Payers

Medicare Monitoring

1-day stays

Observation >2MN

Outliers- Total

Psych

Placement

EOL

Complex Medical

Social

Other

Readmissions

All Cause

Medicare 

Readmissions

AMI

HF

Pneumonia

COPD

THA/TKA

Sepsis

Stroke

Other

Notes

Notes

Q3 

 

66/79



  

        
Utilization Management Plan    Page 7 of 7 

 

CY2021 

Denials 
 

  Initial Days Denied 

Totals 
 

Aetna 
 

Blue Cross  

Medicaid  

UHC  

Other  

 

 

Medicare Monitoring  

CMI  

1- day stays  

Observation >/= 2MN  

Outliers- Total  

Psych  

Placement  

EOL  

Complex Medical  

Social  

Other  

Readmissions  

All Cause  

Medicare Readmissions  

AMI  

HF  

Pneumonia  

COPD  

THA/TKA  

Sepsis  

Stroke   

Other   

 

67/79



A.  

 
 
 

QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
Patient Safety, Process Improvement 

 
CY 20232 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Issued:   August 2020 
Revised:    December 22,20227,2021 

 

Submitted by: Gail Moorehead, MHL, RN, NPD-BC, CMSRN, CPHQ, CPPS

68/79



2 |  P a g e  

 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Patient Safety and Quality Improvement (PSQI) Plan for Bartlett Regional Hospital (BRH) 
is to describe how the organization monitors the care provided to our patients to assure that the BRH mission is 

fulfilled and to describe the components of the Quality Program.   
 

Mission of Bartlett Regional Hospital:  To provide the community with quality, patient-centered care in a 

sustainable manner.   
 

The PSQI Plan is established by the hospital and is supported and approved by the governing body, which has 
the responsibility of monitoring all aspects of patient care and services.  
 

The Bartlett Regional Hospital Quality Program provides for the development, implementation, and 
maintenance of an effective, ongoing, hospital-wide, data-driven quality assessment and performance 

improvement program.  The program reflects the complexity of the hospital’s organization and services; 
involves all hospital departments and services, (including those services furnished under contract or 
arrangement); and focuses on indicators related to improved health outcomes and the identification, prevention 

and reduction of medical errors.   
 

 

Quality Framework 
 

The primary goals of the plan are to continually and systematically plan, design, measure, assess, and improve 
performance of critical focus areas, improve healthcare outcomes, reduce and prevent medical / health care 

errors. The BRH PSQI Plan uses the Institute of Medicine (IOM) framework to describe overarching aims of a 
quality health care system.  The IOM identifies the following as key characteristics: 
 

 Safe:  Avoiding harm to patients from the care that is intended to help them 

 Effective:  Providing services based on scientific knowledge to all who could benefit and refraining 
from providing services to those not likely to benefit (avoiding underuse and misuse, respectively). 

 Patient-Centered:  Providing care that is respectful of and responsive to individual patient 
preferences, needs, and values and ensuring that patient values guide all clinical decisions. 

 Timely:  Reducing waste and sometimes harmful delays for both those who receive and those who 
give care. 

 Efficient:  Avoiding waste, including waste of equipment, supplies, ideas, and energy 

 Equitable:  Providing care that does not vary in quality because of personal characteristics such as 
gender, ethnicity, geographic location, and socioeconomic status 

 
To achieve these aims, the Quality Program works to:   
 

 Establish and maintain a culture of patient safety to prevent inadvertent harm to patients.  This 
culture focuses on safety where we openly report mistakes and take action to make 

improvements in our processes. We strive to maintain a Just Culture within our entire hospital. 
 Assure mechanisms are in place for staff and providers to provide safe, quality clinical services 

and demonstrate improvement in patient outcomes. 

 Assess performance with objective and relevant measures to achieve quality improvement goals 
in an organization-wide, systematic approach in collaboration with patients and families. 

 Continually assess and assure compliance with regulatory and accrediting bodies, including the 
CMS Conditions of Participation, The Joint Commission, and other regulatory bodies. 

 Promote systems thinking and effective teamwork in care design and delivery. 

 Monitor patient satisfaction, and support providers, staff, and departments to focus on areas 
where the patient experience may be improved. 

69/79



3 |  P a g e  

 

 Optimize allocation of resources to reduce waste and ensure the delivery of safe, efficient, 
equitable, and effective care. 

 Partner with colleagues, providers, staff, programs and services to help create and maintain a 
work environment that is safe, purposeful, and meaningful and where we can take joy in our 

work.  
 Annually evaluate the objectives, scope, and organization of the improvement program; evaluate 

mechanisms for reviewing monitoring, assessment, and problem-solving activities in the 

performance improvement program; and take steps to improve the program. 
 

Authority  
 

The Board of Directors of Bartlett Regional Hospital is responsible for the quality of care provided by the 

hospital.  The Board of Directors provides that an ongoing, comprehensive and objective mechanism is in place 
to assess and improve the quality of patient care, to identify and resolve documented or potential problems and 

to identify further opportunities to improve patient care.  The Board reviews the quality of patient care services 
provided by medical, professional, and support staff.  The Board of Directors delegates operational authority 
and responsibility for performance improvement to the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief of the Medical 

Staff. 
 

The Medical Staff, through its by-laws, rules and regulations, service lines, and committees, measures patient 
care processes, and assesses and evaluates quality and appropriateness, and is thus able to render judgments 
regarding the competence of individual practitioners.  Coordination of these activities occurs through the 

Medical Staff Executive Committee and the Chief of the Medical Staff. 
 

Organizational performance improvement is a hospital-wide activity under the direction of hospital leadership, 
and in collaboration with medical staff.  Everyone at Bartlett Regional Hospital is responsible to improve the 
quality of care provided.  It is the responsibility of hospital leadership to establish a culture of quality and assure 

performance improvement activities are given a high priority among department activities. 
 

Scope 
 
The Quality Management Program has been laid out by the Center for Medicaid and Medicare services (CMS) 
in the Conditions of Participation. CMS 482.21 states that we must “develop, implement, and maintain an 
effective, ongoing, hospital-wide, data driven quality assessment and performance improvement program.  The 

hospital’s governing body must ensure that the program reflects the complexity of the hospital’s organization 
and services; involved all hospital departments and services (including those services furnished under contract 

or arrangement); and focuses on indicators related to improved health outcomes and the prevention and 
reduction of medical errors.  The hospital must maintain and demonstrate evidence of its program for review by 
CMS”.  PSQI is a systematic process that identified, evaluated and alleviates systems, processes or situations 

that pose risk of harm to patients, visitors and staff of BRH.  
 

The scope of the Quality Program is broad to include any strategic or operational priorities, and all 
organizational departments and units that impact the aim of the IOM framework described earlier.   The 
activities of the PSQI are connected with Quality and all departments of the hospital and are overseen by the 

Quality Director and the Quality Department.  Quality and safety activities are addressed throughout the 
organization and reported through the Hospital Performance Improvement Committee, which then reports to the 

Board of Directors. 
 
The review and improvement of the Environment of Care (EOC) is under the direction of the Environment of 

Care Committee, which meets regularly and facilitates timely corrective action as environmental safety issues 
are identified. The EOC Team routinely reviews activities related to all seven Management Plans for the 

Environment of Care.   

70/79



4 |  P a g e  

 

 

Structure and Reporting  
 

Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors has established a Quality Committee to communicate information to the Board of 
Directors concerning the hospital quality program and the mechanisms for monitoring and evaluating quality, 
identifying and resolving problems, and identifying opportunities to improve patient care.  The Board of 

Directors receives and reviews reports through the quality QAPI reporting structure.  
 

Senior Leadership 
The Senior Leadership Team (SLT), comprised of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Operations Officer, Chief Nursing Officer, Chief Behavioral Health Officer, and Chief Human Resources 

Officer ensure that an integrated patient safety program is institutionalized and assumes the responsibility for 
the strategic direction and development of the patient safety program.  Patient safety culture survey results 

provide feedback on patient safety practices, communication, teamwork, adverse event reporting, and leadership 
to help guide the vision and goals of the organization.  The SLT is responsible to assure that key strategies 
and/or processes of the organization are identified and prioritized.  SLT supports transparency in 

communication related to patient safety and potential process changes. 
   

The Quality Program operations are carried out by the organization’s administration, medical staff, clinical, and 
organizational support services.  The Medical Staff Executive Committee and the Hospital Performance 
Improvement Committee provide the oversight responsibility for performance improvement activity 

monitoring, assessment and evaluation of patient care services provided throughout the organization.    The 
Senior Director of Quality is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Quality Program, and reports 

directly to the Chief Executive Officer. 
 

Departments 

Individual departments are responsible for the quality management, regulatory compliance and risk 
reduction/identification activities related to the service lines they provide.  Progress on department based 

activities are reported through the Quality committee structures.  
 
Components of the Program: 

 

While having influence and supporting organizational quality across the hospital, the Quality Program is made 

up of a variety of components that broadly include:  core measure monitoring, abstraction, and data submission; 
patient satisfaction, accreditation (both The Joint Commission and CMS CoPs); Risk Management; Patient 
Safety; Infection Prevention and Control; and, Medical Staff Quality. 

 
Medical Staff 

The medical staff monitors, assesses, and evaluates the quality and appropriateness of patient care and the 
clinical performance of all individuals with delineated clinical privileges through the medical staff peer review 
process.  Consistent with this process, performance improvement opportunities are addressed, and important 

issues in patient care or safety are identified and resolved. 
 

Medical Staff service line committees’ roles and responsibilities as they relate to QAPI include: reviewing and 
analyzing data, making recommendations, taking actions where necessary and reporting to Medical Staff 
Executive Committee and the general medical staff through Committee chairs. 

 

 At routine meetings of the medical staff or among its various committees, these quality of services will 
be reviewed, assessed and evaluated: 

o Operative / Invasive procedure monitoring 
o Medication management 

71/79



5 |  P a g e  

 

o Information management functions 
o Blood and blood Product Use 

o Pharmacy and therapeutics Functions 
o Mortality review 

o Risk management 
o Infection control 
o Utilization management 

o Other processes as determined by the individual committee 
o Patient care and quality control activities in all clinical areas are monitored, assessed, and 

evaluated   
o Assessment of the performance of the patient care and organizational functions are included.   

 

 As necessary, relevant findings from performance improvement activities performed are considered part 
of: 

o Reappraisal / reappointment of medical staff members, and  
o Renewal or revision of clinical privileges.   

 
The Hospital Performance Improvement Committee is an administrative committee responsible for identifying 
and reporting on performance improvement issues that affect patient care and services as described in the 

Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations. 
 

Hospital Performance Improvement Committee 
The purpose of the Hospital Performance Improvement Committee is to identify and prioritize performance 
improvement issues within each Department, encourage accountability, and review the effectiveness of 

performance improvement activities. Departments are responsible for conducting continuous quality 
improvement on services and care delivery.   

 
Reporting: 

The results of the department-level initiatives are reported to the Hospital Performance Improvement 

Committee on a regular schedule.  
 

Data related to Patient Safety issues including (but not limited to) medication incidents  which are reviewed at 
the Hospital Performance Improvement Committee.  
 

Functions involving both the Medical Staff and the hospital are addressed through a joint effort directed and 
organized by the Medical Staff leadership and the relevant hospital committees and/or administrative 
leadership.  In these cases, reporting of results will be routed both through the relevant Medical Staff 

committee, and hospital committee or leadership team. 
 

Relevant quality-related results of Medical Staff committees are reported to the Medical Executive Committee 
and General Medical Staff Body. 

 

Patient Safety 
 

The Patient Safety Program is designed to improve patient safety, reduce risk, and respect the dignity of those 
we serve by promoting a safe environment while providing patient centered quality care in a sustainable 

manner. 
 
A culture of safety is a core value for the organization. Safety is led from the top.  In an organization with a 

refined culture of patient safety, events are reported, safety is transparent and safety events are disclosed. 
Hospital leaders work to ensure the following characteristics exist in the organization: 

72/79



6 |  P a g e  

 

 Everyone is empowered and expected to stop and question when things don’t seem right 

 Everyone is constantly aware of the risks inherent in what the organization does 

 Learning and continuous improvement are true values.  There is non-punitive response, feedback, 
and communication about errors 

 Effective teamwork is a requirement, and leadership provides mechanisms for staff to improve the 
functioning of teams 

 Removing intimidating behavior that might prevent safe behaviors 

 Resources and training are provided to take on improvement initiatives  
 
The scope of patient safety includes adverse medical / health care events involving patient populations of all 

ages, visitors, hospital / medical staff, students and volunteers. Aggregate data from internal (IT data collection, 
occurrence reports, questionnaires / surveys, clinical quality measure reports, etc.) and external resources 

(Sentinel Event Alerts, evidence-based medicine, etc.) are used for review and analysis in prioritization of 
improvement efforts, implementation of action steps and follow-up monitoring for effectiveness.  The severity 
categories for medical / health care events include: 

 

 No Harm – an act, either of omission or commission, either intended or unintended, or an act that 
does not adversely affect patients 

 Mild to Moderate Adverse Outcome – any set of circumstances that do not achieve the desired 
outcome and result in an mild to moderate physical or psychological adverse patient outcome 

 Hazardous (Latent) Conditions – any set of circumstances, exclusive of disease or condition for 
which the patient is being treated, which significantly increases the likelihood of a serious adverse 
outcome 

 Root Cause Analysis– Structured and systematic process for evaluating the steps, systems, and 
processes that led up to a Significant or Sentinel event, with an eye toward identifying root and 
proximal causes that are within the organization’s control operationally or financially 

 Serious Safety Event – an unexpected occurrence of substantial adverse impact to patient safety or 
to organizational integrity that does not meet the definitions of “Sentinel Event” but that warrants 

intensive root cause analysis; or any process variation for which a recurrence carries a significant 
chance of a serious adverse outcome 

 Sentinel Event – an unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical or psychological 
injury or the risk thereof.  Serious injury specifically includes the loss of life, limb, or function.  The 

phrase “or risk thereof” includes any process variation for which a recurrence would carry a 
significant chance of a serious adverse outcome resulting in the former.  Additionally, any event 
otherwise defined by The Joint Commission as “reviewable / reportable,” which may change from 

time to time. 
 

The responsibilities of the Director of Quality include oversight of patient safety standards and initiatives, 
evaluation of work performance as it relates to patient safety, reinforcement of the expectations of this plan, and 
acceptance of accountability for measurably improving safety and reducing errors.  Tasks include, but are not 

limited to: 
 

1. Discussion with the patient/family/caregivers regarding adverse outcomes: 
a. Sentinel Events impacting the patient’s clinical condition – The Director of Quality notifies the 

care-giving physician about informing the patient / family / caregivers in a timely fashion (within 

48-72 hours).  Should the care-giving physician refuse or decline communication with the patient 
/ family / caregivers, the Chief of Staff is notified by the Director of Quality.   

b. Events not impacting the patient clinical condition, but causing a delay or inconvenience – The 
Director of Quality or the Administrator On-Call determine the need for communication with the 
patient / family / caregiver in the interest of patient satisfaction. 

 

73/79



7 |  P a g e  

 

2. Response to actual or potential patient safety risks is through a collaborative effort of multiple 
disciplines. This is accomplished by: 

a. Review and triage reports of potential or actual occurrences through the Occurrence Reporting 
system by any employee. 

b. Prioritize events, hazards and system/process weaknesses using the Safety Assessment Code 
(SAC) Matrix. 

c. Measure, report and collaborate with key stakeholder the frequency and severity of events to 

facilitate QAPI opportunities. 
d. Identify, investigate and report Sentinel Events to the Joint Commission based on our policy.  

e. Identify, investigate, and report serious reportable events required by the National Quality 
Forum. 

f. Communication between the Director of Quality and the Facility Safety Officer (FSO) to assure 

a comprehensive knowledge of not only clinical, but also environmental, factors involved in 
providing an overall safe environment. Communication and consultation occurs with the City 

and Borough of Juneau’s safety team for all environmental related issues.   
g. Reporting of patient safety and operational safety measurements / activity to the performance 

improvement oversight group, the hospital Performance Improvement Committee.  

 
3. The mechanism for identification and reporting a Sentinel Event / other medical error is indicated in 

policies, (Sentinel Event Policy and Occurrence Reporting Policy).  A root cause analysis of 
processes, conducted on either a Sentinel Event or Significant Event, are discussed with the Senior 
Leadership Team and the Medical Staff Quality Improvement Committee, as appropriate. 

 
4. In support of our core values and belief in the concept that errors occur chiefly due to a breakdown 

in systems and processes, staff involved in an event with an adverse outcome are supported by: 
a. A non-punitive approach and without fear of reprisal based on a Just Culture 
b. Resources such as EAP or Union representation, if the need to counsel the staff is required 

 
5. Patient safety measures are a focus of our activities and may include review of adverse drug events, 

healthcare acquired infections, “never” events, CMS No Pay events, and other data and incidents. 
This may be based on information published by TJC Sentinel Event Alerts, and/or other sources of 
information including risk management, performance improvement, quality assurance, infection 

control, research, patient / family suggestions / expectations, or process outcomes. 
 

6. Processes are assessed to determine the steps when there is or may be undesirable variation (failure 
modes).  Information from internal or external sources is used to minimize risk to patients affected 
by the new or redesigned process. 

 
7. Solicitation of input and participation from patients and families in improving patient safety are 

accomplished by: 
a. Conversations with patients and families from nursing director on administrative rounds 
b. Comments from Patient Satisfaction surveys, patient feedback forms, telephone or in-person 

conversations, or letters 
c. Comments from patient Complaints or Grievances 

 
8. Procedures used in communicating with families the organization’s role and commitment to meet the 

patient’s right to have unexpected outcomes or adverse events explained to them in an appropriate, 

timely fashion include: 
a. Patient’s Rights statements  

b. Patient Responsibilities—A list of patient responsibilities are included in the admission 
information booklet.   

c. Evaluating informational barriers to effective communication among caregivers.  

74/79



8 |  P a g e  

 

 
9. The following methods are used to maintain and improve staff competences in patient safety science: 

a. Providing information and orientation to reporting mechanisms to new staff in orientation 
training. 

b. Providing on-going training to staff on patient safety initiatives and methods as applicable. 
c. Evaluating staff’s willingness to report medical errors through the AHRQ Culture of Patient 

Safety Survey.  

 
10. Data Analysis: 

a. The hospital routinely analyses data to proactively identify quality and patient safety risks, and 
uses data analyses to develop and monitor responses.  

b. Reporting our data to a patient safety organization (PSO) to provide comparison and benchmarks 

against state and national standards. 
c. Review quality performance indicators to evaluated potential risks and opportunities to develop 

strategies to reduce risk and improve patient safety.  
 

Performance Improvement Methodology 

 
The Bartlett Microsystems methodology is used to drive continuous performance improvement of systems and 

processes related to patient care, patient safety, and workflow efficiency throughout the organization.  An 
accelerated approach may be used for improvement that has been identified through data-driven reports such as 
patient satisfaction surveys, improvement that may not require a multi-disciplinary approach, single-process 

improvement issues or goals, or where sufficient information is available to identify the improvements needed.  
 

Quality improvement priorities are those areas and issues that are high risk, high volume, or problem prone 
areas.  The following are routinely considered when selecting quality improvement initiatives: Incidence, 
prevalence, severity of problems; effect on health outcomes, patient safety and quality of care. 

 
The Bartlett process improvement methodology is a structured and systematic improvement process that 

includes: 
1. S ee:  Identifying opportunities for improvement 
2. S ource:  Finding root causes of variation 

3. S olve:  Using manageable steps to get improvement ideas 
4. S ample:  Developing and testing changes 

5. S ustain:  Monitoring changes so improvements stick 
 

Data Collection and Analysis 

 

The data analysis program will include, but not be limited to, an ongoing program that shows measurable 

improvement in indicators for which there is evidence that it will improve health outcomes. 
 
BRH measures, analyzes, and tracks quality indicators and other aspects of performance that assess processes 

of care, hospital service and operations.  The data analysis in the Quality program incorporates quality 
indicator data including patient care data, and other relevant data.  The hospital uses the data collected to 

monitor the effectiveness and safety of services and quality of care.  The frequency and detail of data collection 
is specified by the hospital’s governing body. 
 

Performance measures for processes that are known to jeopardize the safety of patients or associated with 
sentinel events are routinely monitored.  At a minimum, performance is monitored related to the following 

processes: 
 

 Management of hazardous conditions 

75/79



9 |  P a g e  

 

 Medication management 

 Complications of operative and other invasive procedures 

 Blood and blood product documentation 

 Restraint use 

 Outcomes related to resuscitation 

 National Patient Safety Goals (NPSG) 

 Organ procurement effectiveness:  conversion rate data is collected and analyzed and when reasonable, 
steps are taken to improve the rate. 

 Core Measures 

 Healthcare Acquired Conditions (HAI) 
 

Other sources of data include (but are not limited to) the following: 

 Indicators and screens including functions and services, which may be departmental, inter-departmental, 
medical staff related, or hospital-wide. 

 Occurrence reports and risk management events 

 Patient/customer complaint and grievance data 

 Patient/customer, employee, and medical staff satisfaction data 

 Resource utilization data 

 National benchmark data 
 

Results of the outcomes of performance improvement and patient safety activities identified through data 

collection and analysis, performed by the medical staff service line or clinical committees, are reported to the 
Hospital Performance Improvement Committee  (HPIC)or Medical Staff Quality Improvement Committee 
(MSQIC) on an annual or other basis as designated. 

 

Strategic Quality Objectives 

 
Please see Appendix A for the evaluation of the prior year plan, and the current year’s objectives and measures. 

 
Annual Evaluation 
 

The organizational performance improvement program is evaluated for effectiveness at least annually and 
revised as necessary.  This is to assure the appropriate approach to planning processes of improvement, setting 

priorities for improvement, assessing performance systematically, implementing improvement activities on the 
basis of assessment, and maintaining achieved improvements. 
 

Confidentiality 
 
All information related to performance improvement activities performed by the medical staff or hospital 
personnel in accordance with this plan is confidential per AS 18.23.030, AS 18.23.070(5), and 42 USC 11101 

60.10 (HCQIA). 
 
Confidential information may include (but is not limited to): medical staff committee meetings, dashboards, 

hospital committee minutes, electronic data gathering and reporting, occurrence reporting, and clinician 
scorecards. 

 
Approval 
 

The Performance Improvement Plan is approved by the Chief Executive Officer, Medical Staff Executive 
Committee, and the Board of Directors annually.  

76/79



10 |  P a g e  

 

 
 

_______________________________  ___________________ 
Chief Executive Officer    Date 

 
 
 _______________________________  ___________________ 

Chief of Medical Staff    Date 
 

 
 _______________________________  ___________________ 

Board Chair      Date 

 
 

  

77/79



11 |  P a g e  

 

 
 

Appendix A 

 

 

Evaluation of 20221 PS QI Plan: 

 

Accomplishments:  

 

 

 

 

2022 Goals 

 

Quality Goal CY 2022 Metric Evaluation 

Develop PI Methodology 

onboarding orientation for all new 
management team members 

Initiate training for new management 

team to include: Directors, 
Supervisors and Leads by July 2022. 

Provide training for 75% of new 
leaders within 90 days of hire by 
12/31/2022(Source: Quality Director) 

Not Met: This goal will be 

moved to 2023 as a high-
priority goal.  

Update Ongoing Professional 

Practice (OPPE) to include metric 
comparison with peers 

Revise scorecards and provide data to 

providers based on metrics that 
include personal scores and peer 

basedpeer-based rates. (Source: 
Scorecards through Credentialing 
Committee of provider types) 

Partially met.  Currently, 

three specialties are left to 
determine their specific 

measures.  

Maintain Sepsis core measure 

compliance at or above national 
average.  Current national average 

60%. 

Maintain annual percentage of 

compliance to at least 60% through 
12/31/2022.  (Source: Encore D, Early 

Management Bundle/Severe 
Sepsis/Shock, Annual Percentage) 

Not met:  53%.  Cases that 

were eligible for the measure 
and passes included 41/78.   

   

 

2023 Goals 

 

Quality Goal CY 2023 Metric Evaluation 

Develop and maintain quarterly 

area specific quality measure 

dashboard for directors to provide 

benchmarks against other units 

and national measures on specific 

goals. 

Quarterly dashboards that share at 

least 4 department specific 

actionable areas for improvement 

to at least 3 departments 

 

Implement online peer review 

process to track all peer reviews 

through BRH 

By 12/23 have the MS QIC peer 

review process integrated into the 

re-credentialing process. 

 

HCAHPS : Improve the 6 key 

areas for patient satisfaction. 

Increase the four Key Performance 

Indicator patient experience scores 

that are under the 75th percentile 

to reach the next highest percentile 

ranking by the end of 12/31/2023.  

Increase the Key Performance 

 

Formatted Table

Formatted Table

78/79



12 |  P a g e  

 

Indicator patient experience 

percentile rankings, that are 

already above the 75th percentile, 

by 5% by 12/31/2023. 

Patient and Family Engagement 

(PFAC):  

 

1. Increase patient experience 

scores by 3% by 12/31/2023.  

a. We will focus on questions 

related to comfort, respectful 

treatment, overall friendliness, and 

likelihood to recommend this 

hospital. Planned actions include: 

i. Working with prior patients 

within the transgender community 

to address hospital processes which 

support communication with 

transitions of care that include 

their preferred pronouns  

ii. Develop staff education on 

caring for the transgender 

community to help ensure they are 

receiving equitable care.                                                         

2. Increase patient/family 

PFAC membership by 100%  

a. We currently have two 

community members on our team, 

and we are looking to increase that 

number to four. 

 

Regulatory Readiness: 1. Increase staff perception of 

Joint Commission survey readiness 

by 15% by 12/31/2023.   

a. Planned actions include: 

i. S end out staff survey to get 

a baseline of their perception of 

readiness for a Joint Commission 

survey.  A follow up survey will be 

conducted in the beginning of 

December 2023 to gauge any 

changes to their perception. 

ii. A new process was 

developed to provide staff 

education on survey readiness.  

This includes a new TJC survey 

topic each month with director and 

front-line staff involvement in 

activities. 

 

   

 

79/79


	2023.01.19 AGENDA Board Quality Committee
	Approval of the minutes – December 13 , 2022
	Medical Equipment Management Plan
	Life Safety Management Plan
	Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan
	Safety Management Plan
	Utility Systems Management Plan
	Security Management Plan
	Utilization Management Plan
	Quality Management Plan

